
 
 

   

  

 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 
AGENDA 
Council Chambers 
Monday March 11th, 2019 at 6:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order: 
 

2. Delegations: 

 D1 Corporal Brendan Harkness- RCMP update  Page 1 

  

3. Notice of New Business: 
Mayor’s List 
Councillors Additions 
CAO’s Additions 
 

4. Adoption of Agenda by Consensus: 
 

5. Declaration of Conflict of Interest: 

  

6. Adoption of Minutes: 

 M1 February 25, 2019 Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 

    

7. Business Arising From the Minutes:  

     

8.  Public Hearing: 
 

   

9. Staff Reports   

 SR1 2019 Operations Budget Discussion  Page 12 

 SR2 Discontinuation of Credit Cards for Municipal 
Payments 

 Page 39 

 SR3 Library Associate Member Program  Page 41 

 SR4 Winter Carnival Event Report  Page 51 

 SR5 Special Events Easter Update 2019  Page 56 

 SR6 Annual Inspection of Water System  Page 58 

 SR7 Spring and Fall Clean-up costs  Page 60 

 SR8 Financial Assistance Grants-2019  Page 62 

 SR9 Recreation Committee Recommendations  Page 162 

     



District of Hudson’s Hope March 11th, 2019 
Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 
 

 

 
10. 

 
Committee Meeting Reports: 

 CM1 Recreation Committee Meeting Page 166 

    

11. Bylaws:   

 B1 Officer Bylaw No. 903, 2019 Page  169 

 B2 Fees and Charges Bylaw No.904, 2019 Page 174 

    

12. Correspondence  

 C1 Double H Saddle Club -request for letter of 
support 

 Page 192 

 C2 Notification letter from TransCanada   Page 193 

 C3 Letter from Dan Harrison  Page 196 

 C4 Advisory Letter from Conservation  Page 198 

 C5 Site C Construction Bulletin  Page 199 

 C6 Fort St. John Land and Resource Management 
Update Project 

 Page 202 

 C7 Chetwynd Communications Society- request 
for Letter of Support 

 Page 211 

 C8 Centennial Tree Planting Campaign    Page 213 

 
13. 

 
Reports by Mayor & Council on Meetings and Liaison Responsibilities 

      

 
14. 

 
Old Business: 

    

15. New Business:   

    

16. Public Inquiries:  

    

17. In-Camera Session  

 ICS Notice of Closed Session Page 215 

    

18. Adjournment  

  



DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 

Delegation to Council Request Form 

Name of person or group wishing to appear before Council: 

Subject of presentation: Un)� e'...e�\..,lCJNt\ Jk::nv1-nE5

f\:rvQ �fD'\Nirv\JJ fD/L_ vtS utz_, ✓eA(L_ . 

Purpose of presentation: [J/ 
□ 

□ 

□ 

information only 
requesting a letter of support
requesting funding 
other (provide details)

Contact person (if different than above): 

Telephone number: c:::?5b - 76 � 57� J 

Email address: 3£,e,Dfh-0 t) fr{L� @ W,-.,1p -tnk<e �L- c..A
Will you be providing supporting documentation? D Yes �o 

If yes: □

□

handouts at meeting 
publication in agenda (one original due by 4:30 the
Wednesday prior to your appearance date) 

Technical requirements: 
□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

Page 1 

flip chart 
multimedia projector
laptop 
other 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 1 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
D1



Rules for Delegations: 

1. fifteen minute maximum

2. name of person and or group and subject will be published in

agenda (available to public and on internet)

3. direct your presentation to Council

4. Council may have questions

5. be courteous and polite

6. be respectful

7. is not a debate

8. don't expect an immediate answer

9. may not be on date requested as limit of three delegations per

meeting on a first come, first served basis

10. bring enough handouts if your material is not published in

agenda (the District will not provide reproduction services)

Helpful Suggestions: 

• have a purpose

• get right to your point and make it

• be concise

• be prepared

• don't waste time

• state your request if any

• multiple-person presentations are still ten minutes maximum

• may be people in gallery who support or oppose you

• the Recording Secretary may ask for any relevant notes from you

if not handed out or published in the agenda

I underst��ticffi@k�ee to these rules for delegations 
Reg# 56567

Name 
,,
,o- or Representative of Group 

For Office Use 

D Approved D Rejected 

By (signature): _________ _ D Mayor D CAO 

Appearance date if applicable: ___________________ _ 

Applicant informed of approval/rejection on (date): ____________ _ 

By (signature) _________ _ Date: __________ _ 

Page 2 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 2 of 215



Royal Canadian Gendarmerie royale 
Mounted Police du Canada 

Cpl. Brendan Harkness 
Detachment Commander 
Hudson's Hope Detachment 
RCMP 

Mayor and Council 
District of Hudson's Hope 
9904 Dudley Drive 
Hudson's Hope, BC 

2019-03-04 

Mayor and Council 

Hudson's Hope RCMP 
Report to Mayor and Council 
2018 Policing Report 

Total calls for service for Hudson's Hope detachment in 2018: 446 
Total calls for service 2017: 436 
Total calls for service 2016: 455 

Prisoners lodged in 2018: 9 
Prisoners lodged in 2017: 15 
Prisoners lodged in 2016: 16 

Domestic assaults for 2018: 3 
Domestic assaults for 2017: 5 
Domestic assaults for 2016: 4 

Other crimes against persons for 2018: 16 
Other crimes against persons for 2017: 11 
Other crimes against persons for 2016: 8 

Property crime offences for 2018: 36 
Property crime offences for 2017:13 
Property crime offences for 2016: 39 

Impaired driving offences (criminal/provincial) for 2018: 15 
Impaired driving offences (criminal/provincial) for 2017: 5 
Impaired driving offences (criminal/provincial) for 2016: 15 

Motor Vehicle Collisions (reported to police) for 2018: 32 
Motor Vehicle Collisions (reported to police) for 2017: 22 
Motor Vehicle Collisions (reported to police) for 2016: 32 

Bylaw reports for 2018: 20 
Bylaw reports for 2017: 17 
Bylaw reports for 2016: 10 

Security Classification/Designation 

Non-sensitive 

Your File 

Our File 

Page 1 of 3 

Canada 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 3 of 215



Security Classification/Designation 

Non-sensitive 

Annual performance planning is a critical component of any RCMP detachment when measuring 
performance and success of policing activities. Broken down by fiscal year, April 1 to March 31, 
this allows the RCMP to set priorities for the detachment activities and measure performance 
based on pre-established parameters. The Hudson's Hope RCMP, through consultation with 
partners and stakeholders, establishes their priorities every year. For the 2018/2019 fiscal year, 
the Hudson's Hope RCMP has set multiple priorities. Of note and most impactful, are as follows: 

Traffic Safety and Enforcement: 

Traffic safety is a key component to the work that Hudson's Hope RCMP members do. Through 
consultation with the District of Hudson's Hope, local residents, Ministry of Transportation officials, 
other RCMP sections and ICBC, Hudson's Hope RCMP has continued to increased their focus on 
highway and road safety throughout the area. 2018 was no exception. 

In 2018, the enforcement plan included: 

1 - Increased traffic enforcement on the highway by conducting more speed enforcement, highway 
patrols, and issuing more warnings and tickets to educate drivers. 

2 - Having the Ministry of Transportation assess the school zone and consult with RCMP on 
existing signage. New larger signs were installed and reader boards were removed. Speed 
enforcement in the school zone was increased and more warnings and tickets issued to educate 
drivers. 

3 - Developing and implementing a Speed Watch program for Hudson's Hope to educate drivers 
with a visual reminder. Volunteers were canvassed, trained and program was initiated late Summer 
2018. 

4 - Targeting prohibited, suspended and impaired drivers, via check stops and traffic stops. 

More than 600 violation tickets and written warnings have been issued this fiscal year, as well as 8 
impaired drivers detected and 17 road checks completed. 

As a result of these initiatives, fewer drivers are speeding through the school zone, larger signs 
have been installed and offences have been on the decline. While there continues to be speeding 
on the highway, the speeds have lowered compared to when the plan began. Fewer drivers are 
excessively speeding (over 40 Km/hr above) or driving aggressively (tailgating, unsafe passing). In 
addition, the increased traffic enforcement has also led to firearm charges, possession of stolen 
property charges, recovery of stolen vehicles, and drug possession charges. 

As the new fiscal year approaches, the Hudson's Hope RCMP would like to continue these efforts 
by maintaining a significant focus on the highways to continue to promote safety and detect deter 
offences. 

Property Related Offences: 

As part of the yearly performance planning for 2018/2019, The Hudson's Hope RCMP has focused 
it's efforts on the reduction of property crime in town as well as on the gas camps in the area. 
Throughout the year, officers have taken the time to attempt to identify chronic or prolific offenders 
in the area who have a propensity toward property related offences. Officers also make regular 
patrols to rural parts of the area, with an effort to deter by increasing visibility. Another important 
element that has recently been implemented is to increase the exchange of information with the 
contractors in the area to identify target areas, increase patrols and analyze patterns. Efforts will 
continue into the new reporting period to continue these efforts and options such as a 
neighborhood watch program will be explored to assist with deterrence. 

Youth: 

The Hudson's Hope RCMP officers continue to build on and maintain relationships with the youth in 
town. Over this reporting period, well over 60 contacts have been documented where officers 
interacted with the youth in meaningful ways to build relationships. Be it a safety talk around 

Page 2 of 3 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 4 of 215



Security Classification/Designation 

Non-sensitive 

parades, visiting the school, or attending various community events, the officers know that the 
children of this community are of utmost importance and the most impressionable. It is for that 
reason that the Hudson's Hope RCMP do, and will continue to show up for the kids. After 
consultation with the local school, several events have been identified where officers are asked to 
attend to show presence and support to the education, development and support of our youth. 
School talks and other educational activities such as the bike rodeo will be planned throughout the 
year. An exciting year is ahead. 

Animal Complaints: 

Hudson's Hope RCMP received 20 calls for service in 2018 relating to animals. The complaints 
range from livestock loose on roadway and highway's, stray dogs, dog attacks or other complaints 
relating to noisy animals. These incidents have been, at times, escalated by parties who are 
unsatisfied with the outcome. RCMP officers have limited authorities to enforce animal complaints 
and are, unfortunately, having to refer complainants to the district office for follow-up. 

Concluding Remarks: 

The Hudson's Hope RCMP has seen some significant transition in 2018. Two officers transferred 
out and two more moved in. One of those transitions was a change of command which saw the 
departure of Cpl. Romanchych, who dedicated 4 years of service to the Hudson's Hope RCMP. His 
legacy is apparent by the strong detachment operations that were passed on to his predecessor, 
Cpl. Brendan Harkness. As Cpl. Harkness has transitioned into his new role as Detachment 
Commander, coming from the Canadian Arctic in Nunavut, he has had the opportunity to 
experience the incredible sense of community that Hudson's Hope has to offer. Cst. Erich Schmidt 
and family have most recently moved to Hudson's Hope from their previous posting in the Lower 
Mainland of BC and are settling into their new home. Cst. Schmidt brings a unique perspective to 
his police work being that he served for 7 years with the Canadian Armed Forces prior to joining the 
RCMP in 2014. 

As the detachment brought on two new officers in the past year, it will be seeing the departure of 
Cst. William McKenna in Summer. After 4 years of dedicated service to this community, Cst. 
McKenna will be moving on to his next post. Not only has Cst. McKenna served the community of 
Hudson's Hope with the utmost dedication and integrity, he has brought his genuine, caring nature 
to so many people. Cst. McKenna is a selfless person who puts so many others before himself 
and he will be missed. As he transitions out of the community over the next 6 months, a new 
officer will be identified to transfer in to take his place. 

Cpl. Harkness welcomes any suggestions that council may have with respect to policing priorities 
for the upcoming 2019/2020 fiscal year. These suggestions will be taken into consideration as a 
new plan is set in motion. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

. rendan Harkness 
Detachment Commander 
Hudson's Hope RCMP 

Page 3 of 3 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 5 of 215



 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
February 25, 2019 

6:00 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Present 

1. 

2. 

D1 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 
M1 

Council: Councillor Kelly Miller 
 Councillor Valerie Paice 
 Councillor Patricia Markin 
 Councillor Mattias Gibbs 
 Councillor Leigh Summer 
Councillor Travous Quibell 
Youth Councillor, Taylor Rowe 

Absent:  Mayor Dave Heiberg 

Staff:     Interim CAO, Chris Cvik 
 Director of Public Works, Mokles Rahman 
 Director of Protective Services, Robert Norton 
 Manager of Public Works, Mark Sture 
Corporate Officer, Tammy McKeown 

Other: 

CALL TO ORDER: 
The meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. with Councillor Kelly Miller 
presiding. 

DELEGATIONS: 

Corporal Brendan Harkness- RCMP update 
• Corporal Harkness will be in attendance at the March 11, 2019

Regular Council Meeting.

NOTICE OF NEW BUSINESS: 

Mayors Additions: 
Councillors Additions: 

• CM3- Councillor Summer: Peace Williston Advisory Meeting
CAO Additions: 

• SR4- Addition to Public Works Update

ADOPTION OF AGENDA AS AMENDED BY CONSENSUS: 

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES: 
February 11th, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Corrections:  SR4: should read “in our” not “in out”. 

0550-01 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 6 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
M1



7. 
BA1 

8. 

9. 

SR1 

SR2 

SR3 

SR4 

RESOLUTION NO.048/19 
M/S Councillors Gibbs/Summer 
That 
“The minutes of the February 11th Regular Council Meeting be adopted as 
amended.” 
CARRIED 

BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 
D1- Beckman Road Access: 

• Discussion with BC Hydro representative, in regard to Beckman
Road access, occurred on February 12, 2019.  BC Hydro did
not have any update to share at that time.

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

STAFF REPORTS: 

Approving Officer Appointment 
RESOLUTION NO.049/19 
M/S Councillors Gibbs/Quibell 
That 
“Council appoint Chris Cvik, Interim CAO, as Approving Officer for the 
District of Hudson’s Hope.” 
CARRIED 

Conference Report- CAO Forum 
FOR INFORMATION 

District of Hudson’s Hope Municipal Water Supply 
• The District of Hudson’s Hope closed meeting, listed in the

timeline, has been changed to March 12th, 2019 with Western
Water and L&M in attendance.

RESOLUTION NO.050/19 
M/S Councillors Quibell/Pace 
That 
“Council is authorized to attend the Public Meeting with Western Water, 
L&M, and BC Hydro(tentative) during the week of April 1st, 2019.” 
CARRIED 

Public Works Update 
• Water connection leak was investigated after receiving a call

from a resident.  Leak was not on the main waterline but was
on the connection line to the residence.

• Director of Public Works believes that there are more leaks,
based on the water usage.

• A water usage plan will be prepared over the next couple of
years.

• Sanitary water line, on McDougall, was frozen; Public Works
and contractors worked over the weekend to clear the line.

• Will conduct line checks in the spring to determine the exact
issues, such as low spots, in the lines.

6660-20 
0220-01 
5400-01 

3010-00 
2770-01 
1940-00 

0390-01 

0560-00 
6660-20 
5280-14 

5210-01 
5280-01 
5340-01 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 7 of 215



SR5 

SR6 

SR7 

SR8 

SR9 

SR10 

SR11 

10. 

CM1 

Administration update 
FOR INFORMATION 

Protective Services Update 
• Northeast BC Emergency Mass Communication system –

having employees of the District sign up for the notifications.
The employees will be used for testing the system.  The
Director of Protective Services will bring more information back
once the initial testing has been completed.

Purchasing Policy Amendment 
• Change definition of Local to read “within the boundaries of the

District of Hudson’s Hope”.
• Corporate Officer gave explanation of the Northeast Inter-

Community business license that is available to businesses
operating in multiple municipalities.

RESOLUTION NO.051/19 
M/S Councillors Markin/Paice 
That 
“Council approve the amended District of Hudson’s Hope Purchasing 
Policy.” 
CARRIED as amended 

Swimming Pool Liner Repairs-Sole Source 
RESOLUTION NO.052/19 
M/S Councillors Gibbs/Quibell 
That 
“Council waive the Purchasing Policy and approve a sole source contract 
to Master Pools Alta Ltd. for repairs to the pool in the amount of 
$23,000.” 
CARRIED as amended 

Recreation and Special Event Update 
FOR INFORMATION 

Recreation Committee Recommendations 
RESOLUTION NO.053/19 
M/S Councillors Quibell/Paice 
That 
“Staff to bring forward an amendment to the Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 
843 to incorporate the changes recommended by the Recreation Advisory 
Committee.” 
CARRIED 

CAO Update 
• Staff will provide a short tutorial in regard to the financial

statements at the next meeting.
• FOR INFORMATION

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 

Recreation Committee Meeting Minutes 
FOR INFORMATION 

0110-01 

7380-01 

1790-00 
0340-50 

1705-00 
2320-01 
0810-20 

8100-01 

0360-01 
3900-01 

0110-01 

0360-01 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 8 of 215



CM2 

CM3 

11. 
B1 

B2 

12. 

C1 

C2 

C3 

Industry Committee Report 
RESOLUTION NO.053/19 
M/S Councillors Quibell/Paice 
That 
“Council directs staff to request a quote from a local engineering firm to 
create a preliminary design of the light industry development, based on 
the reduced scope of work, with the following criteria: 

- Lots are serviced with water and 3 phase power. No sewer.
- Roadway is gravel
- Development extends from the furthest west lot to Powell Road.
- Lots are not cleared
- Developments follows MOTI guidelines.”

CARRIED 

Councillor Summer- Peace Williston Advisory Meeting 
• Discussions were had regarding a meeting between BC Hydro and

the District Council and possibly a Public Meeting with the
residents of Hudson’s Hope to discuss the impact of Site C.

• Community Engagement Committee can expand their scope to
include Industry Relations.

• Some discussion was had regarding BC Hydro assisting with the
establishment of a new RV Park in the Municipality.

• Next meeting will be held in September.

BYLAWS: 
Council Remuneration Bylaw No. 902/2019 
RESOLUTION NO.054/19 
M/S Councillors Quibell/Summer 
That 
“Council adopt Bylaw 902, 2019, a bylaw to provide for remuneration of 
the Council and for the reimbursement of expenses. 
CARRIED 

Officer Bylaw No, 903, 2019 
RESOLUTION NO.055/19 
M/S Councillors Quibell/Summer 
That 
“Council approve First, Second and Third Readings of ‘District of Hudson’s 
Hope Officer Bylaw 903, 2019’.” 
CARRIED 

CORRESPONDENCE: 

NCLGA Draft AGM Agenda 
FOR INFORMATION 

Message from FCM and UBCM 
FOR INFORMATION 

2019 BC Economic Summit 
FOR INFORMATION 

0360-01 
6850-00 

0360-01 
6660-20 

3900-20 
0530-01 

3900-20 
2770-01 

0400-01 

0400-01 

0390-01 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 9 of 215



C4 

C5 

C6 

C7 

C8 

C9 

C10 

C11 

C12 

C13 

C14 

13. 

 CR1 

14. 

15. 

Pouce Coupe Winter Jamboree 
FOR INFORMATION 

NCLGA Board Meeting Minutes 
FOR INFORMATION 

2018 Community Grant Reports 
FOR INFORMATION 

Meeting with School District 60 Board of Education 
FOR INFORMATION 

ALC Regional Seminar 
FOR INFORMATION 

Site C Construction Bulletin 
FOR INFORMATION 

School District 60 Application for Lease Renewal 
FOR INFORMATION 

UBCM Provincial Budget Highlights 
FOR INFORMATION 

NOVA Gas Transmissions Ltd-North Montney Mainline Crossing 
Consent 
FOR INFORMATION 

Peace River Local Government Association Meeting 
FOR INFORMATION 

BC Ministry of Agriculture Agricultural Advisory Committee 
Workshop 
RESOLUTION NO.056/19 
M/S Councillors Gibbs/Paice 
That 
“Council approve travel for up to two Councillors to attend the BC Ministry 
of Agriculture Agricultural Advisory Committee Workshop on March 13, 
2019 in Langley.” 
CARRIED 

REPORTS BY MAYOR & COUNCIL ON MEETINGS AND LIAISON 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

Councillor Markin- Report on Community Energy Association 
Session and Media Training Session. 
FOR INFORMATION 

OLD BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 

0400-50 

0400-01 

1850-01 

0400-70 
0360-01 

0390-01 
0400-30 

0640-01 
5400-01 

0400-70 

0400-01 

6660-01 

0400-01 

0400-20 
0390-01 

0390-01 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 10 of 215



16. 

17. 

PUBLIC INQUIRIES: 

ADJOURNMENT:  
Councillor Kelly Miller declared the meeting adjourned at 6:46pm 

DIARY       Diarized 
Conventions/Conferences/Holidays 
Beryl Prairie Septic Field      07/25/16 
School Gymnasium agreement      02/26/18 
Budget items      07/09/18 
Spruce Beetle Summit- revisit 2019      11/05/18 
Agricultural Land Commission      28/01/19 

Certified Correct: 

_______________________  ________________________  
Chair/Councillor Kelly Miller    Corporate Officer, Tammy McKeown 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 11 of 215



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RFD#: CC-2019-25 I Date: March 5, 2019 
Meeting#: CM031119 I Originator: Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 
RFD TITLE: 2019 Operations Budget Discussion 

BACKGROUND: 

The Draft 2019 Operation$ budget is presented to Council for information and 
discussion. The budget will be finalized once the 2018 year-end balance information 
has been verified through the 2018 audit that was completed by KMPG during the week 
of February 25, 2019, and information is received from the Peace River Regional District 
for the Regional District and Regional Hospital District amounts, as well as amounts for 
BC Assessment, School Tax, Municipal Finance Authority, and Police Tax. 

DISCUSSION: 

Highlights or points of discussion from the 2019 budget include: 

• Presentation of financial information is simplified from recent prior years.
• Change in presentation format makes it difficult to directly compare 2019 to 2018 

account information.
• The estimated $2,125,035 shown in the draft budget for Property taxes is based 

on 2018 tax rates and 2019 assessed property values. In other words, it does not 
include any increase in tax rates.

• Council should discuss increasing tax rates by 2% to keep up targeted inflation 
amounts. This would provide an additional $21,445.00 in revenue that could be 
allocated to the Community Hall/Multi-use Centre Reserve.

• The General Government Services Expense Accounts includes two new line 
items:

a) 'Transfer to General Machinery and Office Equipment Fund'. This is really 
a reserve fund within the Capital Machinery and Equipment Reserve Fund 
that is for Office Equipment (i.e., Computer and Server Replacement).

b) 'Contingency Fund'. This account provides a funding source for 
unexpected items that may occur throughout the year that need to be 
addressed.

• Overtime in Public Works has been budgeted. Although overtime cannot be 
predicted in advance, historical information shows the District incurring overtime 
in prior years that has not been budgeted. It is important to track this amount to 
understand the true cost of providing services.

• Within the Capital Machinery and Equipment Reserve, Administration tracks 
Protective Services, Office Machinery and Equipment Reserve. While all of these 
have been consolidated under one Bylaw (No. 602, 2000) it is important to track 
balances separately.

Page 1 of 2 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 12 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR1



RECOMMENDATION/ RESOLUTION: 

1. Council receive the attached draft 2019 Operations Budget for information.

Attachments: 

1. 2019 Draft Operations Budget - Summary
2. 2019 Draft Operations Budget - Detailed
3. 2019 Draft Reserve Fund Balance

Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 

Page 2 of 2

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 13 of 215



2019 Draft Operations Budget 

General Operations 2019 2018 

General Revenue 

WaterO&M 315,009 - 349,106 

Water Utility Fund 1,000 - 3,000 

SewerO&M 140,430 - 164,978 

Sewer Utility Fund 5,678 - 6,678 

Property Taxes 2,125,035 - 2,045,573 

grants in lieu 1,637,286 - 1,558,733 

grants other 835,465 - 160,451 

General Government Services 59,450 - 154,302 

Collection Other Gov'ts 3,155,897 - 3,168,086

ICBC 144,525 - 149,250

Protective services 5,000 - 5,000 

Bylaw/Lands 9,325 - 82,900 

Public Works 14,000 - 14,804 

Environmental & Public Health 251,420 - 255,357 

Recreation 173,140 - 171,557 

EDO 2,500 - 85,600 

to/(-)from General Fund 

General Operations Revenue -$ 8,875,160 -$ 8,375,375 

General Expenditure 

Water 316,009 352,107 

Sewer 146,108 171,656 

Legislative 135,563 172,318 

Grants in Aid to Cmty 50,700 19,244 

GGS 1,151,175 727,481 

Collection Other Gov'ts 3,155,897 3,168,086 

ICBC 74,350 88,349 

Protective Services 304,277 351,350 

Bylaw/Lands 70,630 291,857 

Public Works 1,124,228 1,184,705 

Environmental & Public Health 157,250 187,519 

Recreation 1,217,168 1,207,788 

EDO 23,500 52,100 

TRANS TO CEMETERY FUND 300 205 

TRANS TO GENRL OPTG M&E FUND 8,922 

TRANS TO DPW M&E RESERVE 99,083 

TRANS TO PROTEC SERV M&E RESERVE 100,000 

TRANS TO SEWER RESERVE 

TRANS TO WATER RESERVE 

Trans Community Hall Fund 30,000 30,000 

Trans to Tax Sale 5,113 

to/(-)from General Fund to Capital 710,000 365,497 

Total General Operations Expense $ 8,875,160 $ 8,375,375 

Surplus/ (-)deficit: must be 0 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 14 of 215



2019 ANNUAL BUDGET 

WATER SEWER BUDGET 

WATER REVENUE 

04-40-4000-4501 Users Charge 

04-40-4000-4502 Metered Commercial Water Stand 

04-40-4000-4503

04-40-4000-4507

Residential Water Stand 

j Metered Commercial Buildings 

04-40-4000-4512
1
Water Discounts 

04-40-4000-4506 Prior Year Surplus *fnn 2018 Rev &Exp 

04-40-4000-4603 Transfer from General Operating Fund 

-115,250

-25,000

-6,200

-8,500

3,200

-163,259

0 

---

WATER PIPING & DISTRIBUTION 

j Co;nection_s __ 

-L � 
-315,009

- --

04-40-4001-4504 

-t-
TOTAL WATER PIPING & DISTRIBUTION REVENUE 

04-40-4000-5002 �ages & Ov�rhead 

04-40-4000-5005 _f)vertime

04-40-4000-5017 I Travel Expenses

04-40-4000-5018 Training & Development 

TOTAL WATER REVENUE 

WATER 

Expense 

04-40-4000-5100 Communications - Phone, Fax, Internet, etc. 

04-40-4000-5102 Electricity- BC Hydro 

04-40-4000-5104 Courier & Freight 

04-40-4000-5112 Licenses & Permits 

04-40-4000-5124 Contracted Services 

04-40-4000-5126 Chemicals 

04-40-4000-5765 Transfer to Water Fund 

04-40-4000-5800 O&M Treatment 

(balance) 

TOTAL WATER TREATMENT EXPENSES 

I 

-1,000

-1,0001

36,500 
-----

10,000 

5,500 

8,000 

6,000 

40,000 
--- - - ---

750 

2,500 

10,000 

12,500 

61,209 

65,000 

257,959 

l 

-316,009
1 

J 

2018 BUDGET 

-352,107

- - - -

1 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 15 of 215



WATER PIPING & DISTRIBUTION 

04-40-4001-5002 WAGES & OVERHEAD & BP WELL WGS 

04-40-4001-5005 Overtime 

04-40-4001-5102 Electricity 

04-40-4001-5805 Beryl Prairie Well 

� -
TOTAL WATER PIPING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

1
_ 

TOTAL WATER EXPENSE 

- T

2018 BUDGET 

35,000 

��000 1
11,050 

2,000 + 
58,050 

316,009 352,107j 

2 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 16 of 215



05-50-5000-4502

05-50-5000-4505

05-50-5000-4508

05-50-5000-4513

05-50-5000-4506

05-50-5000-4603

05-50-5001-4504

05-50-5001-4514

05-50-5000-5002

05-50-5000-5005

05-50-5000-5017

05-50-5000-5018

05-50-5000-5100

05-50-5000-5104 

05-50-5000-5112

05-50-5000-5124

05-50-5000-5766

05-50-5000-5802

SEWER TREATMENT REVENUE 

Unmetered User Charges 

Lagoon Dumps: commercial ceased

! Metered Sewer Services

Sewer Discounts

Prior Year Surplus *frm 2018 Rev & Exp 

Transfer from General Operating Fund 

l 

I 
TOTAL SEWER TREATMENT REVENUE

SEWER PIPING & COLLECTION REVENUE

L 

-70,600 1

-2,50

�
· 

-4,000 

2,300 

-65,630 

of 
I -140,430 

r-----1--
j 
Connections -r----- -1,000 

2018 BUDGET 

L 

Thompson Sewer Bylaw#877 
--

j 
- I� -

-4,678 

l
TOTAL SEWER PIPING & DISTRIBUTION REVEN_U_E�

I
� __ 

L_ -5,678 _______________ _-t-- TOTAL SEWER REVENUE
1 -146,108 -682,979

27,oool 

7,500 

1,5001 

I 
WASTE WATER EXPENSE- =-r 

1wages & Overhead _ _ _ � ---- . , 

r - -1I overtime 

!Travel Expenses
- --

I 

r.;raining & Development I 
! Communications - Phone, Fax, Internet, etc. 

I
Courier�Freight __

_
_ _ 

Licenses & Permits 

Contract Services 

I Transfer to Sewer Fund
r -------

(balanc� __ j 
!O&M Lagoo� 

TOTAL SEWER TREATMENT EXPENSES

r� 
- -

6,000 

1,500 

500 

1,000 

2,500 1 

24,308 

45,ooo[ 

116,8081 

3 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 17 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 18 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 19 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 20 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 21 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 22 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 23 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 24 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 25 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 26 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 27 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 28 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 29 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 30 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 31 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 32 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 33 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 34 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 35 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 36 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 37 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 38 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 39 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR2



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 40 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 41 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR3



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 42 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 43 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 44 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 45 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 46 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 47 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 48 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 49 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 50 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 51 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR4



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 52 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 53 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 54 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 55 of 215



THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 
 
 
REPORT TO:   Mayor and Council  
 
SUBJECT: Easter Update 
 
DATE:   March 11, 2019     
 
FROM:  Kaitlyn Atkinson, Recreation and Special Events Coordinator 

(RSEC)    
    
 
History 
In the updated job description for the RSEC (Fall 2017), the planning and facilitation of an Easter 
event was removed. In 2018, the District advertised this change through the Bulletin, PSA’s and 
social media. A call was put out by the District for an interested group to come forward and plan an 
Easter event. This was in exchange for access to District owned props and supplies, assistance with 
marketing, a small monetary donation to the group and coverage of approved event expenses. No 
group came forward and no event was planned.  
 
2019 
The call for a group to organize an Easter event has again gone out. The funding for the event is 
included in the 2019 Special Events O&M budget. The ad and information were updated for clarity 
and conciseness. See below. 

 

Type text here

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 56 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR5



Potential Groups to take the Easter event on: 
• Hudson’s Hope Library 
• Hudson’s Hope Bible Fellowship 
• Strongstart 
• Grad of 2020 

 
 
 

 
 
 

___________________________________________________ 

Approved by: Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 

 

___________________________________________________ 

Prepared by: Kaitlyn Atkinson, Recreation and Special Events Coordinator  

 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 57 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 58 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR6



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 59 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 60 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR7



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 61 of 215



REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Each year we receive financial grant applications from Non-profit organizations within the 
community to assist them in providing different services or to assist with capital projects. 

DISCUSSION: 
We received the following applications for the 2019 year: 
 
 
   

Association Request 
  

Double H Saddle Club $3,505.20 -to pay for renovations at the 
arena and to hire grad class to dismantle the 
bleachers.  In Kind- tables, chairs, big tent, 
transport of porta-potties, snow plowing to 
access arena and parking lot, mowing of the 
ditches, weed spraying, and purchase and 
installation of caution Horse and rider 
crossing signs. 

Fall Fair Society In Kind- tables, chairs, flat deck trailer, 
printing, ownership of the tent 

Friends of Hudson’s Hope Municipal taxes- approx. $3835.05 
Northern Rockies Karate-Do Society $1,000 to purchase equipment for Hudson’s 

Hope dojo. 
Hudson’s Hope Soccer In Kind- tent, tables, garbage cans, approx. 

$225 to cover Special Event insurance 
Bullhead Mountain Curling Club Donation to cover purchase of new stones 
Hope 4 Health In Kind- safety cones, use of office 

equipment, transport of porta-potties, tents, 
sandwich board, assistance of SEC, use of 
hot-chocolate back pack, media/publicity 
support 

Hudson’s Hope Parent Advisory Committee $2,500 to be used for the Honor Roll 
program 

Hudson’s Hope Health Care & Housing 
Society 

Up to $38,000 to assist with window 
replacement at Silver Willows 

 
Portable tent:  There has been one request for the tent to be given to one of the organizations.  
They have stated that they will make it available for rental to the other organizations in town 
and to the District for Canada Day, if Council agrees to transferring ownership to them as part 

RFD#:         Date:   2018-02-28 
Meeting#:   Originator: Tammy McKeown 
RFD TITLE:  Financial Assistance Grant applications 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 62 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR8



of the grant.  The tent is over 10 years old with a book value of approximately $500.  The 
rental/loan of the tent has been an issue for Public Works as it takes many employee hours 
each year for set-up, take -down and cleaning.   Administration recommends the ownership of 
the tent to be transferred to the Fall Fair Society. 
 
Administration contacted the Bullhead Mountain Curling Club to clarify a value in regard to their 
request.  As the club did not respond with an amount that they may require to cover the 
purchase, an amount has not been allocated to them. 
 
We received total cash requests in the amount of $11,565 (excluding the Health Care & 
Housing Society).  We have allocated $7,135 to the value of the in-kind donations based on 
previous years associated costs.   There is approximately $17,000 that can be allocated to 
Hudson’s Hope Health Care & Housing Society, after taking into consideration the other 
requests. 
 
ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS: 
 
  
  
 
 
Report Approved by:  __  ___________________________ 
    Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 
 
 
BUDGET: 
The Financial Grant Policy specifies that up to 15% of residential taxes can be used towards 
Financial Assistance Grants.   This year, there is approximately $50,700 available for Grants.  
$15,000 of this has been allocated to the properties affected by our Exempt Property Bylaw, 
leaving $35,700 available for the remaining community requests.   
 
RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 
 
That Council approves the following Financial Assistance Grants for 2019: 
 

Association Grant approval 
  

Double H Saddle Club $3,505.20 -to pay for renovations at the 
arena and to hire grad class to dismantle the 
bleachers.  In Kind- tables, chairs, transport 
of porta-potties, snow plowing to access 
arena and parking lot, mowing of the ditches, 
weed spraying, and purchase and installation 
of caution Horse and rider crossing signs. 

Fall Fair Society In Kind- tables, chairs, flat deck trailer, 
printing. 

Friends of Hudson’s Hope Municipal taxes- approx. $3835.05 
Northern Rockies Karate-Do Society $1,000 to purchase equipment for Hudson’s 

Hope Dojo. 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 63 of 215



Hudson’s Hope Soccer In Kind- tables, garbage cans, pprox.. $225 
to cover Special Event insurance 

Bullhead Mountain Curling Club  
Hope 4 Health In Kind- safety cones, use of office 

equipment, transport of porta-potties, 
sandwich board, assistance of Special 
Events Coordinator, use of hot-chocolate 
back pack, media/publicity support 

Hudson’s Hope Parent Advisory Committee $2,500 to be used for the Honor Roll 
program 

Hudson’s Hope Health Care $17,000 to assist with window replacement 
 

 
And That: 
 
Council approve the transfer of ownership of the portable tent to the Hudson’s Hope Fall Fair 
Society as part of their Financial Assistance Grant. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
2019 Grant applications 

 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Tammy McKeown, Corporate Officer 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 64 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 65 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 66 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 67 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 68 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 69 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 70 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 71 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 72 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 73 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 74 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 75 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 76 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 77 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 78 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 79 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 80 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 81 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 82 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 83 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 84 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 85 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 86 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 87 of 215



Hudson's Hope Fall Fair 
2018 Comparative Income Statement

Budget Actual
Revenue

Grants 5000.00 3,000.00
Auction 1000.00 917.00
Bank Interest 5.00 5.00
Donations 1000.00 2,450.00
Gate 250.00 200.00
Registrations 200.00 222.00
Tables 200.00 150.00
Dinner 1600.00 2,000.00
Total Revenue 9255.00 8,944.00

Expenses

AHA Membership Fees 30.00 30.00
Annual Society Membership 25.00 25.00
Brochures 200.00 0.00
Grads 300.00 0.00
Insurance 500.00 475.00
Misc. 100.00 0.00
Office Supplies 100.00 147.70
Prizes 1000.00 480.00
Ribbons 0.00 0.00
Tags 0.00 0.00
Train Fuel 30.00 0.00
Wagon Rides 350.00 0.00
AGM 110.00 108.24
Rodeo Grounds 500.00 500.00
Shirts/Wristbands 300.00 239.10
Music 3000.00 1,324.00
Dinner 1600.00 1,600.00
Engraving 60.00 28.88
Chair Rental 100.00 25.00
Lions Van 110.00 0.00

Total Expenses 8415.00 4,982.92

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 88 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 89 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 90 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 91 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 92 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 93 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 94 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 95 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 96 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 97 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 98 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 99 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 100 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 101 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 102 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 103 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 104 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 105 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 106 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 107 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 108 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 109 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 110 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 111 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 112 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 113 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 114 of 215



Hudson’s Hope Trappers Youth Soccer Association 
Society# S40361 (BC Soccer Assn) 
 
Financial Statement 
 
Period: April 1, 2018 to Jan 31, 2019 
 
Bank Balances 
NPSCU Account# 101000420190 

Account Name April 1, 2018 Jan 31, 2019 Change 
Chequing  $12,669.41 $10,140.10 -$2529.31 
Plan24/ Coaching  $312.76 $312.86 +0.10 
Membership Shares $70.09 $72.90 +2.81 

 
 
Transactions Summary 
 
Credits 
 

Date Amount Comments 
May 5, 2018 $1685 HH Soccer Registration Fees 
May 16, 2018 $575 HH Soccer Registration Fees 
June 8, 2018 $2790.50 HH Soccer Registration Fees & tournament fees 
June 8, 2018 $2340 Tournament fees paid to HH by FSJ, Chet, Tumbler 
June 8, 2018 $1000 BC Hydro Social Club donation 
June 23, 2018 $1079.50 Trappers Jackets and hats payments from parents 
July 4, 2018 $480 Trappers jackets and hats payments from parents 
Sep 30, 2018 $225 DOHH tournament insurance reimbursement 
Sep 30, 2018 $1065.10 Bottle shed money (Chetwynd depot) 
Sep 30, 2018 $100 Registration 
   
TOTAL Credits $11340.10  

 
Debits 
 

Date Amount Comments 
May 1, 2018 $100 Pearkes Center yearly storage locker rental 
May 29, 2018 $540 Tumbler Ridge soccer tournament fees 
June 1, 2018 $600 Withdrawal for soccer concession float 
June 5, 2018 $571.51 Lawrence’s Meat Ft St John 
June 6, 2018 $500 Grad 2019 (soccer concession assistance) 
June 9, 2018 $1193.22 Real Canadian Wholesale FSJ 
June 9, 2018 $379.33 Real Canadian Wholesale FSJ 
June 13, 2018 $1622.04 Better Awards.com medals & decals 
June 14, 2018 $695.06 Field supplies, tourney insurance, misc 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 115 of 215



June 14, 2018 $4261.17 HH Trappers jackets and hats 
June 14, 2018 $167.92 Prize table prizes 
June 14, 2019 $280 Chetwynd soccer tourney registration 
June 15, 2019 $75 Zack Milliken (reffing soccer) 
June 23, 2019 $2248 BC Soccer Association registration fees 
June 23, 2019 $575.62 Tupperware water bottles 
   
TOTAL Debits $13808.87  

 
Financial Notes: 

- We have an inventory of Hudson’s Hope Trappers jackets and hats which will continue to be sold 
off in the 2019 outdoor season, to balance the credit/ debit lines 

- We purchased a number of Tupperware water bottles which will be given to players in the 2019 
outdoor season 

- We received $500 from BC Hydro for new soccer jerseys (cheque yet to be deposited) 
- We received $100 from DOHH for coming 2nd in the Christmas parade (chq to be deposited) 
- We have $100 cash on hand from jacket/ hat sales (to be deposited) 

 
 
Jason Naisby 
HH Soccer President 
 
March 6, 2019 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 116 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 117 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 118 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 119 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 120 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 121 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 122 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 123 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 124 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 125 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 126 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 127 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 128 of 215



Month September 
REGULAR ACCOUNT

DATE Item W/D DEPOSIT BALANCE

1-Jan Opening Balance 7487.8
10-Jan Transfer Gaming Funds 2960 4527.8

chq # 94 200.39 4327.41
Chq # 95 195.83 4131.58
Interest 0.22 4131.8
Charge 6.5 4125.3

1-Feb Opening Balance 4125.3
Interest 0.16 4125.46
Charge 6.5 4118.96

1-Mar Opening Balance 4118.96
Interest 0.17 4119.13
Service Charge 6.5 4112.63

1-Apr Opening Balance 4112.63
Deposit 967.75 5080.38
Interest 0.19 5080.57
Service Charge 6.5 5074.07

1-May Opening Balance 5074.07
Interest 0.22 5074.29
Service Charge 6.5 5067.79

1-Jun Opening Balance 5067.79
Interest 0.21 5068
Service Charge 6.5 5061.5

31-Jul Opening Balance 5061.5
Interest 0.21 5061.71
Service Charge 6.5 5055.21

1-Aug Opening Balance 5055.21
Interest 0.21 5055.42
Service Charge 6.5 5048.92

1-Sep Opening Balance 5048.92
Interest 0.21 5049.13
Service Charge 6.5 5042.63

1-Oct Opening Balance 5042.63
11-Oct Deposit 3384 8426.63

Province of BC Gaming Grant 8426.63
Interest 0.31 8426.94
Service Charge 6.5 8420.44

1-Nov Opening Balance 8420.44
13-Nov Transfer Gaming Grant to Gaming Acc 3384 5036.44

Interest 0.26 5036.7

Hudson's Hope School PAC  Treasurer's Report

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 129 of 215



Service Charge 6.5 5030.2
1-Dec Opening Balance 5030.2

Interest 0.21 5030.41
Service Charge 6.5 5023.91

1-Jan Openng Balance 5023.91
Interest 0.21 5024.12
Service Charge 6.5 5017.62

1-Feb Opening Balance 5017.62
13-Feb Transfer to cover Chq from Gaming 327.17 4690.45

Interest 0.19 4690.64
Service Charge 6.5 4684.14

4684.14

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 130 of 215



GAMING ACCOUNT
DATE ITEM W/D DEPOSIT BALANCE

1-Jan Opening Balance 183.01
Transfer in Gaming Funds 2960 3143.01
Interest 0.1 3143.11
Charge 2 3141.11

1-Feb Opening Balance 3141.11
Interest 0.12 3141.23
Charge 2 3139.23

1-Mar Opening Balance 3139.23
Interest 0.13 3139.36
Service Charge 2 3137.36

1-Apr Opening Balance 3137.36
Interest 0.13 3137.49
Service Charge 2 3135.49

1-May Opening Balance 3135.49
Interest 0.13 3135.62
Service Charge 2 3133.62

1-Jun Opening Balance 3133.62
Interest 0.13 3133.75
Service Charge 2 3131.75

31-Jul Opening Balance 3131.75
Interest 0.13 3131.88
Service Charge 2 3129.88

1-Aug Opening Balance 3129.88
Interest 0.13 3130.01
Service Charge 2 3128.01

1-Sep Opening Balance 3128.01
Interest 0.13 3128.14
Service Charge 2 3126.14

1-Oct Opening Balance 3126.14
Interest 0.13 3126.27
Service Charge 2 3124.27

1-Nov Opening Balance 3124.27
13-Nov Transfer Gaming Grant to Gaming Acc 3384 6508.27

Chq # 23 3000 3508.27
Interest 0.11 3508.38
Service Charge 2 3506.38

1-Dec Opening Balance 3506.38
Interest 0.15 3506.53
Service Charge 2 3504.53

1-Jan Openng Balance 3504.53
Chq # 24 327.17 3177.36
Chq # 25 3177.36
Chq # 26 1260 1917.36
Interest 0.12 1917.48

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 131 of 215



Service Charge 2 1915.48
1-Feb Opening Balance 1915.48

Deposit (to cover chq # 24) 327.17 2242.65
Interest 0.08 2242.73
Service Charge 2 2240.73

2240.73
2240.73
2240.73
2240.73
2240.73
2240.73

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 132 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 133 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 134 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 135 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 136 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 137 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 138 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 139 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 140 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 141 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 142 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 143 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 144 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 145 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 146 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 147 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 148 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 149 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 150 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 151 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 152 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 153 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 154 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 155 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 156 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 157 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 158 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 159 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 160 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 161 of 215



REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) from the Recreation Committee Meeting held February 19, 2019: 
THAT 
 

1. “Staff apply for a land tenure on the property immediately adjacent to the Hudson’s Hope 
Arena (Parcel identifier #009-019-278) with the intent that these lands be used for a 
Recreational Facility Expansion.”  
 

2. “Council approve the Flex hours schedule as amended and endorsed in principle by the 
Recreation Committee; noting schedule is subject to change as activities require.”  
 

3. “Staff review the terms of reference, for the Recreation Committee and clarify if the Youth 
Councillor sits as a member of the public, or other, and update to include clear term 
definitions.” 

 
ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS: 
 
 
  
  
Report Approved by:  __  ___________________________ 
    Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. The Recreation committee has been directed to begin planning for a major recreation 
facility expansion and has identified this land as the best option available.  
 

2. Review of the RSECs anticipated FLEX for new programs was delegated to the Recreation 
Committee for approval before coming back to council. 
 

3. The terms of reference that are attached are missing some crucial information. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

1. The Recreation Committee has begun planning for the possibility of a new multi 
use recreation facility. However, in order to effectively plan for a new building, 
including a site plan and building design it is necessary that the District look at 
obtaining the necessary land. The parcel indicated is adjacent to our exiting arena 
and ball diamond facilities and would provide ample room for a new building with 
space for facilities to meet the recreational needs of the community. Out of the 
possible sites this one would most completely meet our needs and is the first choice 
of the Recreation Committee. 

RFD#:         Date: March 7, 2019   
Meeting#:   Originator: Kaitlyn Atkinson 
RFD TITLE: Recreation Committee Recommendations  

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 162 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
SR9



 
2. The Recreation Committee reviewed the RSECs proposed FLEX time as it related to 

planned events and recreation. A line by line review was completed, the committee 
asked questions and some changes to the proposed hours were made. The chart 
below reflects these changes and is referred to council. This chart is a list of 
programs and estimations as they exist today, actual values may differ. 
 

Name 

Flex 
Hours 
Approved 

Guided Snowshoe 6 
Women’s Hockey Winter 9 
Family Day 3.5 
Summer Movie Nights (3) 12 
Summer Hike Series 24 
Farmers Market District 
Table 10 
Yoga in the Park Series 2 
Volunteer Appreciation 6 
Summer Camps-3 weeks 10 
Rail Jam addition to 
Winter Carnival 3 
Haunted Jamieson Woods 4 

 
3. The terms of reference note that four (4) members of the public sit on the 

committee. What is unclear is if the Youth Councillor is included as a member of the 
public. Terms lengths are not included in the terms of reference which presently 
allow for an individual to serve for as many years as they would like without having 
to reapply for the seat.  

 
BUDGET: 
 

1. Unclear at this time what the cost of acquisition may be. These figures will likely 
come to light if council pursues the land as a viable option for a new facility. 
 

2. The RSEC is a salaried position and does not incur overtime. There is no extra cost 
to the District for these hours.  
 

3. N/A 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Kaitlyn Atkinson, Recreation and Special Events Coordinator  

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 163 of 215



PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

1.1. To act as an advisory body to Council on matters related to municipal campgrounds, 
community parks, indoor and outdoor recreation facilities and opportunities, sport and 
recreation.   

 
2. ROLE AND MANDATE 

 
2.1. The Committee will act in an advisory capacity to Council in matters pertaining to 

municipal campgrounds, community parks, indoor and outdoor recreation facilities and 
opportunities, sport and recreation, and will: 

2.1.1. Review and provide feedback on the Strategic Plan, including making 
recommendations regarding existing services/facilities or those that may meet the 
future needs of the community. 

2.1.2. Provide a community perspective on recreational opportunities offered by the 
District 

2.1.3. Foster public awareness, recognition and support for recreational activities. 
2.1.4. Make recommendations regarding the coordination of community parks, sport 

and recreation services with the programs of other agencies and voluntary 
organizations to ensure the most effective use is being made of that space. 

2.1.5. Consider and make recommendations with respect to such issues as referred to 
from time to time by the Recreation and Special Events Coordinator, the Chief 
Administrative Officer, or Council. 

2.2. Recommendations are to be supported by relevant research including but not limited to; 
minutes from committee discussions, survey data, etc. Recommendations should be 
strategic in nature and deal with issues at a policy level, not operations or maintenance. 
 

3. MEMBERSHIP, APPOINTMENT, AND TERMS 
3.1. The Committee will consist of eight (8) members, including 

3.1.1. Three (3) members of Council, one to serve as Chair.  
3.1.2. Four (4) community representatives from the public. 

3.1.2.1. Youth Councillor  
3.1.2.2. The members will represent a balance of interests within the Community, 

including but not limited to: representatives of the youth/young adult and 
ageing populations; representatives of the families; representatives of 
environmental matters as they relate to recreation and leisure; representatives 
of arts, culture and history in the community. 

3.1.2.3. The Mayor is ex-officio member of all committees, including the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Committee and will be notified of all meetings. 

3.2. Appointments to the Committee shall be made as follows: 
3.2.1. The three council representatives are the existing 3 members of the Council 

Recreation Committee 
3.2.2. Council shall appoint four (4) representatives from the public who are residents of 

the District of Hudson’s Hope. 
3.3. Council shall appoint the Recreation and Special Events Coordinator. 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 164 of 215



3.4. Council may, at any time, remove any member of the Committee by Council resolution 
and any member of the committee may resign therefrom at any time upon sending 
written notice to the Chairperson of the Committee. 

3.5. Committee members who are absent from three (3) consecutive meetings and or an 
absent for more than a total of 4 meetings per year, shall forfeit their appointment, 
unless such absence is authorized by resolution of the Committee. 

3.6. Members are expected to review all meeting materials prior to the Committee meetings 
and RSVP to the Committee whether they will attend the meeting. 

3.7. In the event of a vacancy during a regular term, the vacancy may be filled for the 
remainder of that term upon resolution of Council as soon as is convenient. 

3.8. Members of the Committee shall serve without remuneration. 
 

4. MEETINGS 
4.1. The Committee will meet a minimum of four (4) times per year. 
4.2. Special meetings may be held at the discretion of the Chair. 
4.3. The Committee shall abide by the rules and procedures included in the Council 

Procedure Bylaw. 
 

5. STAFF SUPPORT 
5.1. For each Committee meeting, the Committee Secretary, which will be the staff member 

on committee, the Special Events and Recreation Planner will be the primary contact 
and provide the required professional support. 

5.2. The Committee Secretary will be responsible to organize, prepare and distribute an 
agenda and the minutes from the previous Committee meetings. 

 
 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 165 of 215



 

  

RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 19, 2019 

Meeting called to order: 5:00 PM 
Meeting adjourned: 6:43 PM 

 

ATTENDEES   
Travous Quibell, Councillor (Chair)
Kelly Miller, Councillor 
Valerie Paice, Councillor 
Taylor Rowe, Youth Councillor 
Kaitlyn Atkinson, Recreation and Special Events Coordinator (RSEC) 
Mattias Gibbs, Guest Councillor 

 
ABSENT 
 Coleman Mercereau, Public Member 
 Lynnea Stacey, Public Member 

Debbie Beattie, Public Member 
 
AGENDA ITEMS 

Travous called the meeting to order at 5:00PM.  
 

1. Agenda Adopted by Consensus  
 

2. Adoption of Minutes from January 22, 2019 
M/S Valerie Paice/ Mattias Gibbs 
CARRIED 
 

3. Notice of New Business 
No new business. 
 

4. Budget Update 
• $30,000 for Multi Use Center design has been moved from the Special Events 

budget and needs to be added to the capital budget for 2019. 
 

5. Council Tasks 
• Council has referred a report from Director of Public Works regarding the 

needed pool liner replacement in 2020 to the Recreation Committee. We are 
to report back by October with a recommendation. Item is diarized for 
review. 

 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 166 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
CM1



6. Committee Recommendations to Council (Feedback) 
• Council has asked for more information in the report and for the Recreation 

Committee to clarify the cost of any additional children or youth over the cap 
of 4 in a family.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
THAT 
“Council votes to abolish the pool Drop in Rate and instead only utilize the 

Day Rate except for specific one (1) hour programs the Pool Supervisor 

may choose to run from time to time.” 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT 
“Council approve the definition of a Family for pool admittance purposes 
as a maximum of two (2) adults and up to four (4) dependent children or 
youth living in the same household. Additional dependant children will be 
admitted at $1.50/ additional child or youth.” 
 

7. Multi-Use Community Center 
• Location is key. First choice would be the Crown land immediately behind 

the arena.  
RECOMMENDATION 
THAT 
“Staff apply for a land tenure on the property immediately adjacent to the 
Hudson’s Hope Arena (Parcel identifier #009-019-278) with the intent 
that these lands be used for a Recreational Facility Expansion.”  
 

8. ATV Campground 
• Tenure is in place. 
• Management plan needs some updating in order to meet the conditions of 

the tenure. 
• Development of campsite area would include required measures to reduce 

environmental impacts. 
• Cost would be about $100,000 if put out to bid. 
• RSEC is applying for a grant to cover up to $20,000 and making a preliminary 

budget. 
 

9. Flex Hours for Proposed Programs 
• Less flex hours for the RSEC are planned this year due to the seasonal hire of 

two (2) to three (3) Recreation Assistants.  
• Committee went through the RSEC’s flex predictions and amended where 

necessary.  
Historical Flex Hours for this Position: 
2017: 125 Hours 
2018: 163 Hours 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 167 of 215



2019 Projected: 130 Hours 
RECOMMENDATION 
THAT 
“The Recreation Committee endorses, in principle, the Flex hours schedule 
as amended and subject to change as activities require. Amended 
schedule is referred to council.”  

 
10. Terms of Reference 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT 
“Staff review the terms of reference, for the Recreation Committee and 
clarify if the Youth Councillor sits as a member of the public, or other, and 
update to include clear term definitions.”  

 
11. Recreation and Special Events Update 
• Parent and tot second round cancelled due to not meeting minimum registration.  

 
12. Old Business 

 
New Business Description Member to follow up Status 
Interest from community in 
joining the committee 

Kaitlyn Atkinson Update terms of reference 
to include term lengths. 

Ski Hill is likely not going to 
continue. Mackenzie has 
their own municipally 
operated hill. Now is the 
time to take it over before it 
is too far gone. 

Kaitlyn Atkinson Waiting on Ski Hill proposal 

Focus on Rec Master Plan as 
key next document.  
Plan for pool end of life. 

Kaitlyn Atkinson In Progress 

 
Old Business Description Member to follow up Status 
BC Hydro responsibility of 
the boat launch at Dinosaur. 
What is the District 
responsible for? 

Kaitlyn Atkinson In Progress 

Request update from BC 
Hydro Community 
Engagement Committee on 
proposed Berm. Report 
back 

Kaitlyn Atkinson In Progress 

 

Next Meeting: February 19, 2019 at 5pm  
Meeting Adjourned 6:43PM 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 168 of 215



REPORT TO: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE:  

FROM: 

THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 

Mayor and Council  

Officer Bylaw No. 903, 2019 

February 28, 2019 

Tammy McKeown, Corporate Officer 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT:   

“Council adopt the “Officer Bylaw No. 903, 2019”. 

ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS: 

Report Approved by:  _____________________________ 
Chis Cvik, Interim CAO 

INFORMATION: 

Council approved First, Second and Third Readings at the February 11th Regular 
Council Meeting.

At this time the District is without a Bylaw Officer and no other officers have been 
assigned the duties and responsibilities required to act in the role of Bylaw Officer.   It is 
necessary to adopt a new Officer Bylaw that will give the powers to enforce the District’s 
bylaws to the Director of Protective Services. 

Officer Bylaw No. 903, 2019 incorporates the following powers, duties and 
responsibilities to the Director of Protective Services: 

Bylaw Enforcement 

• Appointed under Section 146 of the Community Charter
• Shall have the power to enforce any Bylaw of the district
• Responsible for bylaw enforcement, building permits and inspections and assisting

the Administrator with development applications.

Report prepared by:  __________________________________________ 
 Tammy McKeown 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 169 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
B1



DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 

Bylaw No. 903, 2019 

A bylaw to replace Bylaw No. 891 establishing officer positions and set out the administrative structure 
under which the business of the District shall be conducted. 

WHEREAS under section 146 of the Community Charter the Council must establish officer positions in 
relation to the powers, duties and functions under sections 148 [Corporate Officer] and 149 [Financial 
Officer]; and 

WHEREAS under section 146 of the Community Charter the Council may establish other officer 
positions; and 

WHEREAS under section 146 of the Community Charter the Council may assign powers, duties and 
functions to its officer positions; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Hudson's Hope, in an open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be cited as the "Officer Bylaw No. 903, 2019".

DEFINITIONS 

2. In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires:

a. " Act " means the Community Charter Act of the Province of British Columbia

"Administrator" means the Chief Administrative Officer of the District

"District” means the District of Hudson’s Hope.

"Council" means the Council of the District of Hudson's Hope.

b. Words used shall have the same meaning assigned to them by the Community Charter
Act.

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 170 of 215



MUNICIPAL DEPARTMENTS 

3. The business of the District, under the direction of the Chief Administrative Officer with and by
the authority invested in him/her by Council, shall be conducted by the departments hereby
established:

a. Administrative Department
b. Public Works Department
c. Protective Services Department

OFFICER AND DEPARTMENT HEAD POSITIONS 

4. Officers of the District shall be:

a. Administrator
b. Director of Public Works
c. Director of Protective Services
d. Corporate Officer
e. Bylaw Enforcement / Safety Officer

5. Each officer shall be the department head of their respective departments as outlined in
Section 3 (a), (b), and (C).

6. Each Officer of the District shall be the person from time to time appointed as such and includes
the person employed as such on the date of adoption of this bylaw.

APPOINTMENT, TERMINATION, AND SUSPENSION 

7. Officers shall be appointed by resolution of Council. Appointments to all other positions shall be
made by the Administrator or his/her designate.

8. Officers may be terminated in accordance with section 152 of the Act.

9. Officers may be suspended in accordance with Section 151 of the Act.

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ADMINISTRATOR 

10. The Administrator is the Chief Administrative Officer whose powers, duties, and functions
include those set out in Section 147 of the Act.

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 171 of 215



11. The Administrator is the Financial Officer, assigned the responsibility of financial
administration, whose powers, duties, and functions include those set out in Section 149 of the
Act.

12. The Administrator is assigned the responsibility as Collector of Taxes for the District as set out
in the Act.

13. The Administrator is appointed as the Approving Officer under Section 77 of the Land Title Act.

POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

14. The Director of Public works shall be responsible for the District's public works, utilities and
facilities.

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTOR OF PROTECTIVE 
SERVICES 

15. The Director of Protective Services is appointed as the Fire Chief, and shall have the powers,
duties and functions pursuant to Section 66 of the Act, the Fire Services Act of the Province of
British Columbia and the District of Hudson ' s Hope Fire Protection and Life Safety Bylaw  No.
775, 2009.

16. The Director of Protective Services shall be responsible for the fire department and the Districts
emergency program.

17. The Director of Protective Services is appointed under section 146 of the Act as a Bylaw
Officer and shall have the power to enforce any Bylaw of the District.

18. The Director of Protective Services shall be responsible for bylaw enforcement, building
permits and inspections and assisting the Administrator with development applications.

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CORPORATE OFFICER 

18. The Corporate Officer shall be responsible for corporate administration, whose powers, duties,
and functions include those set out in Section 148 of the Act.

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BYLAW ENFORCEMENT/SAFETY 
OFFICER 

19. The Bylaw Enforcement/Safety Officer is appointed under section 146 of the Act and shall have
the power to enforce any Bylaw of the District.

20. The Bylaw Enforcement/Safety Officer shall be responsible for bylaw enforcement, building
permits and inspections and assisting the Administrator with development applications.

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 172 of 215



21. The Bylaw Enforcement/Safety Officer shall be responsible for all aspects of safety training,
program/ policy development, and management systems implementation and maintenance for
the District.

PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION 

22. The Council hereby delegates to the Administrator

a. The power, duty and function to assign additional responsibilities to an Officer,
including acting on behalf of another officer in his/her absence, to  ensure
efficient operation  of the District.

b. The power, duty and function to appoint, assign responsibilities to, promote,
discipline and dismiss employees other than officers.

23. Any Officer may act in the place of the Administrator during his/her absence, except that the
acting Administrator may not exercise the powers stated under Section 21 (a) of this Bylaw in
relation to the Administrator or him/ herself. All Officers are deemed to be deputies to the
Administrator.

REPEAL 

24. Upon adoption of this bylaw, the Officer Bylaw No. 891, 2017 is hereby repealed.

     ______________________________ 

     Tammy McKeown 
          Corporate Officer  

Read for a First Time on the 11th day of February, 2019.  
Read for a Second Time on the 11th day of February, 2019. 
Read for a Third Time on the 11th day of February, 2019. 
Adopted on the __ day of ___, 2019. 

_________________________________ 

Dave Heiberg  
MAYOR 

Certified a true copy of Bylaw No. 903, 2019 
this ___ day of _______________ 20_. 

________________________________ 

Clerk 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 173 of 215



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
THAT:  
Council approve First, Second and Third Readings of “District of Hudson’s Hope Fees and 
Charges Bylaw 904, 2019”. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
During the February 25, 2019 meeting Council gave the following direction: 
RESOLUTION NO.053/19  
M/S Councillors Quibell/Paice 
That 
“Staff to bring forward an amendment to the Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 843 to 
incorporate the changes recommended by the Recreation Advisory Committee.” 
CARRIED 
 
In reviewing the existing Fees and Charges Bylaw, it was determined that the best course of 
action would be to create a new District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw that incorporates all the 
amendments made since 2014. 
 
In Bylaw 904, we are performing housekeeping by incorporating the existing Fees and 
Charges Bylaw 843 with the existing amending Bylaws and amending Schedule “D” to change 
the title ‘single rate’ to read ‘One Hour Programs’.  We are including a statement informing 
Patrons that they must leave the pool after completing a one-hour program.  We have 
updated the definition of ‘Family’ to read “Family consist of a maximum of two (2) adults and 
up to four (4) dependant children or youth living in the same household.  Additional 
dependent children will be admitted at $1.50/ additional child or youth.  We have removed 
‘Section 8.0 Aquafit’ as these rates are now reflected under ‘One Hour Programs.’ 
 
The following Bylaws will be repealed upon adoption of Bylaw 904, 2019: 

• District of Hudson's Hope Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 843,2014 
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 866,2016 
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 867, 2016 
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 880, 2017 
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 886, 2017 
• District of Hudson's Hope Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 893, 2017 

 
ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS: 
   
Report Approved by:  _____________________________ 
    Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 
 

RFD#:       Date:   March 1, 2019 

Meeting#:  CM031119 Originator: Tammy McKeown, Corporate Officer 
RFD TITLE:   District of Hudson’s Hope Fees and Charges No, 904, 2019 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 174 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
B2



FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

1. Draft copy of “District of Hudson’s Hope Fees and Charges Bylaw 904, 2019”. 
 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Tammy McKeown, Corporate Officer 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 175 of 215



Hu□son·s 

HOPS 

p LA�qROLif\J> Of +�t pt Mt

�-··� 
� . . --

- _ ...... 

':.
.._ .. ,�,-.·•·. :..;a. . , 
., 

.,,,, �--

Bylaw No. 904, 2019 
DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 176 of 215



WEREAS pursuant to Section 194 of the Community Charter Council may, by bylaw, impose fees and 
charges payable in respect of any service it considers necessary or desirable; 

AND WHEREAS Council deems it necessary and desirable to exercise the authority provided by the 
Local Government Act to cover costs or providing various services and information; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Hudson's Hope, in open meeting assembled, enacts as 
follows: 

Read a first time this ___day of ________,2019. 

Read a second time this ___day of ______, 2019. 

Read a third time this___day of _____,2019.  

Adopted this ___day of ______,2019.

Bylaw No. 904, 2019 

_________________________
Dave Heiberg
Mayor

_______________________
Tammy McKeown 
Corporate Officer

1. This bylaw shall be cited as the "District of Hudson's Hope Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 904,2019"

2. The District of Hudson's Hope hereby imposes fees and charges for the provision of services and 
information as specified in the Schedules attached to and forming part of this bylaw.

3. The following Bylaws are repealed:
• District of Hudson's Hope Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 843,2014
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 866,2016
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 867, 2016
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 880, 2017
• Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 886, 2017
• District of Hudson's Hope Amended Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 893, 2017

4. This Bylaw shall come into full force and effect the day this Bylaw is adopted.

5. If any part, section, sub-section, clause, or sub-clause of this Bylaw is, for any reason, held to be
invalid by the decision of a Court of competent jurisdiction, such decision does not affect the validity
of the remaining portions of this Bylaw.

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 177 of 215



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SCHEDULE A - Development Application Fees 

SCHEDULE B - Water Service Fees and Charges 

1.0 SERVICE CONNECTION FEE ................................................................... B1 

2.0 FEE FOR TURNING A CURB STOP ON OR OFF ........................................ B1 

3.0 ABANDONMENT FEE .............................................................................. B2 

4.0 WATER METER TESTING FEE ................................................................. 82 

5.0 WATER RATES ...................................................................................... 82 

SCHEDULE C - Sewer Service Fees & Charges 

1.0 SERVICE CONNECTION FEE ................................................................... C1 

2.0 ABANDONMENT FEE .............................................................................. C1 

3.0 SEWER RATES ...................................................................................... C1 

SCHEDULE D - Pool Fees & Charges 

1.0 FACILITY RATES ................................................................................... D1 

2.0 POOL RENTAL BASE RATES .................................................................. D1 

3.0 SCHOOL BOARD LESSONS .................................................................... D2 

4.0 PRIVATE LESSONS ................................................................................ D2 

5.0 SWIMMING LESSONS ............................................................................. D2 

6.0 PRIVATE LANE RENTAL ......................................................................... D3 

7.0 PRIVATE RENTALS ................................................................................ D3 

Bylaw No. 904, 2019 A-ii

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 178 of 215



,_ __ HUDS□n'S 
HOPS 
t'f�ij•D "f HI pt/.lt 

SCHEDULE A 

Development Application Fees 

[::'• .;jnrT'(PEj()flDEVELO�ME�T A�PLl��TfON-,,�,, -:·; ,;- , .. -::,�--." � .. • • •·• - I"'""�•-_.. f' 
I 'l� l' ,- ... • 1 I ., lo • • - ·1 '.. . l •" • - • I . . L:j • 

�-=•J;._ ���- • ""--...%"_____!;;__ �- -�- • •  -··. -

. . . -

FEE ·· · 

$450 

� -

Subdivision application (strata and fee simple) 
per each new lot 

Amendment to the District's Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Amendment to the District's Zoning Bylaw 

Amendment to the District's 'OCP' and Zoning Bylaw (combined) 

Issuance of a Development Permit 

Issuance of a Development Variance Permit 

Appeals to the Board of Variance 

Issuance of a Temporary Commercial or Industrial Use Permit 

.1 All development application fees established in the table above are: 

(a) non-refundable; and

$750 

$750 

$1,500 

$450 

$400 

$450 

$500 

(b) must be paid in full to the District of Hudson's Hope at the time of application .

' 

. 2 Any advertising costs associated with a development application identified in Table A-1 

must be paid by the applicant, including, but not limited to: newspapers ads, mail-outs, 

signage, notices, posters, and administrative costs including printing, postage and 

photocopying. 

Bylaw No. 904, 2019 A-1

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 179 of 215



SCHEDULE B 

Water Service Fees & Charges 

1.0 SERVICE CONNECTION FEE 

.1 The fee for installation of each water service connection by the District, as set out in the 

District's Water Service Regulations Bylaw, is the greater of: 

(a) 100% of the District's actual and reasonable costs of the installation of the Service

Connection and restoration plus any applicable taxes; or

(b) One Thousand Dollars $1,000 .

. 2 The amount set out in Section 1.0.1 of this Schedule shall be paid as follows: 

(a) Prior to installation of a Service Connection, an amount equal to an estimate by

the Operation Manager of the District's actual and reasonable cost to install the

Service Connection, including without limitation the District's materials, labour,

equipment, overhead, administrative and restoration costs, shall be paid to the

District; and

(b) after installation of the Service Connection is complete any further amount required

to cover the District's actual and reasonable costs to install the Service Connection

and restore the area must be paid to the District within thirty (30) days of delivery

of an invoice by the District. Any amount paid in excess of the District's actual and

reasonable costs to install the Service Connection and restore the area is

refundable.

2.0 FEE FOR TURNING A CURB STOP ON OR OFF 

. 1 The fee per turn on or tum off a Curb Stop during regular working hours of the District and 

provided at least seventy two (72) hours' notice has been provided to the District as set out 

in section 40 is Forty Dollars ($40.00) . 

. 2 The fee to turn on and/or turn off a Curb Stop outside regular working hours of the District 

or on less than seventy two (72) hours' notice to the District as set out in in the District's 

Water Service Regulations Bylaw is Two Hundred Dollars ($250.00) if turn on and/or turn 

off is completed within three (3) hours. An additional call out charge of Two Hundred Dollars 

($250.00) will be applied if the turn on and/or turn off is over three hours in duration. 

Bylaw No. 904, 2019 B-1

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 180 of 215



3.0 ABANDONMENT FEE 

.1 The fee for abandoning a Service Connection as set out in the District's Water Service 

Regulation Bylaw shall be equal to 100% of the District's actual and reasonable costs to 

complete the disconnection of the Water System from the owner's Property, plus any 

applicable taxes. Payment of the District's estimate of the cost to complete the 

disconnection is required in advance of disconnection. Any amount paid in excess of the 

District's actual and reasonable costs to install the Service Connection and restore the area 

is refundable. 

4.0 WATER METER TESTING FEE 

.1 The fee for a meter test as set out in the District's Water Service Regulations Bylaw is One 

Hundred Seventy Five Dollars ($175.00). 

5.0 WATER RATES 

.1 

. 2 

. 3 

.4 

. 5 

. 6 

. 7 

The owner of each dwelling unit as defined in the District's Zoning Bylaw, which is 

connected to the municipal water supply and distribution systems, shall pay an annual fee 

of $250.80 per year  . An owner may elect to pay the annual fee in two installments and a 

4% discount will be given if the first installment is paid prior to February 15th and a 4% 

discount will be given if the second installment is paid prior to August 15th. 

The Annual fee set out in Section 5.0.1 of this Schedule must be paid to the municipality 

within 30 days of the invoice being mailed . 

A prorated refund of the annual fee will be allowed, providing the water supply to the 

dwelling unit has been turned off by the municipality at the request of the owners and the 

period that the water service is turned off exceeds one month . 

The owner of each commercial or other non-residential premises, which is connected to 

the Community Sewer System must pay an annual fee of $511.50 per year . 

Notwithstanding Section 5.0.5 of this Schedule, where a water meter Is installed on any 

premises to measure the quantity of water used on that premises, the owner of the 

premises shall be charged in each month 70 cents per 1,000 litres consumed, or part 

thereof, subject to a minimum monthly charge of $39.00 . 

The owner of a premise that is metered will be invoiced monthly in accordance with the 

water consumed . 

The rates for the token-operated water stands at the Beryl Prairie Fire Hall and on Clarke 

Avenue are: 

(a) 50 Imperial Gallons for one 25 cent token, or

(b) 200 imperial gallons for one $1 token .

. 8 The rate for the commercial (key lock) water stand on Clarke Avenue is 1.25 cents per 

Imperial Gallon 

Bylaw No. 904, 2019 B-2

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 181 of 215



SCHEDULE C 

Sewer Service Fees & Charges 

1.0 SERVICE CONNECTION FEE 

.1 The fee for installation of each water service connection by the District, as set out in the 

District's Sewer Service Regulations Bylaw, is the greater of: 

(a) 100% of the District's actual and reasonable costs of the installation of the Service

Connection and restoration plus any applicable taxes; or

(b) Two Thousand Dollars $2,000 .

. 2 The costs referred to in 1.0.1 include the following restoration works: 

(a) Any augering and/or restoration of concrete curbs and sidewalks. or road surfaces;

(b) Any cutting, excavation or backfilling of frozen ground.

(c) Any additional restoration works will be charged at 100% of actual costs of the

restoration works .

. 3 Where, for the sanitary sewer service, a local service tax or latecomer charge is established 

under a supplementary separate bylaw or agreement, that charge shall take precedent 

over the aforementioned connection fee. 

2.0 ABANDONMENT FEE 

.1 The fee for abandoning a Service Connection as set out in the District's Sewer Regulations 

Bylaw shall be equal to 100% of the District's actual and reasonable costs to complete the 

disconnection of the water system from the owner's premise, plus any applicable taxes. 

Payment of the District's estimate of the cost to complete the disconnection is required in 

advance of disconnection. Any amount paid in excess of the District's actual and 

reasonable costs to install the service connection and restore the area is refundable. 

3.0 SEWER RATES 

.1 

. 2 

The owner of each dwelling unit as defined in the Zoning Bylaw, which is connected to the 

municipal sewage collection and disposal system, shall pay an annual fee of $207.00 per 

year . A owner may elect to pay the annual fee in two installments and a 4% discount will 

be given if the first installment is paid prior to February 15th and a 4% discount will be 

given if the second installment is paid prior to August 15th.

The annual fee set out in Section 3.0.1 of this Schedule must be paid to the municipality 

within 30 days of the invoice being mailed. 

Bylaw No. 904, 2019 C-1

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 182 of 215



-, -- l • ,.. 

.3 The owner of each commercial or other non-residential premises, which is connected to 

the Community Sewer System, must pay an annual fee of $221.50 per year . 

. 4 Notwithstanding Section 3.0.4 of this Schedule, where a water meter is installed on any 

premises, the owner of the premises shall be charged in each month a sum equal to 45% 

of the invoice for water, subject to a minimum monthly charge of $18.00. The owner of a 

premise that is metered will be invoiced monthly in accordance with the water consumed. 

This charge is in addition to any applicable charges outlines in Schedule B of this Bylaw . 

. 5 A prorated refund of the annual fee will be allowed, providing a disconnection has been 

requested by the owners. 

FE�� AN�' ,CHARGES Bylaw No. 904,, 2019 C-2
• , I � 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 183 of 215



SCHEDULE D 

Pool Fees & Charges 

1.0 FACILITY RATES 

Base Rates One Hour 
Programs* 

Daily 10 Pass 30 Pass 1 Month Season Pass 

Child $2.50 $3.50 $20.00 $60.00 $25.00 $60.00 

Youth $3.50 $4.50 $30.00 $80.00 $35.00 $70.00 

Adult $5.00 $6.00 $45.00 $100.00 $45.00 $110.00 

Senior $3.50 $4.50 $30.00 $80.00 $35.00 $70.00 

Family** $10.00 $12.00 $80.00 $200.00 $85.00 $200.00 

* Patrons must leave the pool after completing a one hour program.
** Family consists of a maximum of two (2) adults and up to four (4) dependent children or
youth living in the same household. Additional dependent children will be admitted at 
$1.50/ additional child or youth. 

2.0 POOL RENTAL BASE RATES 

Base Rates Hours Pool Base Staff Sub Total GST PST Total

2 Staff 1 hour $70.00 $50.00 $120.00 $6.00 $126.00 

3 Staff 1 hour $70.00 $75.00 $145.00 $7.25 $152.25 

4 Staff 1 hour $70.00 $100.00 $170.00 $8.50 $178.50 

2 Staff 1.5 hours $100.00 $75.00 $175.00 $8.75 $183.75 

3 Staff 1.5 hours $100.00 $112.50 $212.50 $10.62 $223.12 

Extra Staff 1 hour $25.00 $25.00 $1.25 $26.25 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 184 of 215



DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 185 of 215



6.0 PRIVATE LANE RENTAL 

Base Rates Hours 'Pool Base Sub Total GST PST Total 

1 lane Adult 1 hour $9.00 $9.00 $0.45 $9.45 

1 lane Youth 1 hour $6.00 $6.00 $0.30 $6.30 

Half Pool Lanes 1t hour $30.00 $30.00 $1.50 $31.50 

7.0 PRIVATE RENTALS 

Non Profit Rentals Less 25% Base Rate 

Private Functions 100% Base Rate 

Fundraising Functions Less 40% Base Rate (Pool Only) 

Special Events Less 40% Base Rates (Pool Only) 

*** Fun Leaders available for Birthday Parties at $25.00 per hour total with GST $26.25*'* 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 186 of 215



"SCHEDULE E" 

CEMETERY SERVICES FEES 

Ground Burial A Right of Care Fund Preparation & TOTAL 
Interment Contribution Placement 

Adult Interment $200.00 * $50.00 * $300.00 $550.00 
Child Interment $200.00 * $50.00 * $200.00 $450.00 

Cremation $200.00 * $50.00 * $100.00 $350.00 
Interment 

A Liner is mandatory 
* Right of Interment fee and the Care Fund Contribution is only charged for the first interment
in a lot, subsequent interments will not be charged these fees.

Col um barium 

Double Niche 1st

Interment 
(Top Two (2) Rows) 

Double Niche 1st 

Interment 
(Bottom Two (2) Rows) 

Double Niche 2nd 

Interment 

Memorials 

Ground Memorial 
Columbarium Memorial 

Plate 
Columbarium Memorial 
Plate (Second Name) 

Grave Liners 
- Burial

Right of 
Interment 
$500.00 

$470.00 

NIA 

Memorial 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

- Cremation (Ground Burial)

Miscellaneous Fees 

Exhumation or Disinterment 

Care Fund 
Contribution 

$25.00 

$25.00 

N/A 

Installation Fee 

$145.00 
$20.00 

$20.00 

Interments on Saturday, Sunday or Statutory Holidays or after 
3:30 pm Monday to Friday 
Administration Fee 
Handling Fee 

Preparation & TOTAL 
Placement 

$50.00 $575.00 

$50.00 $545.00 

$50.00 $50.00 

Care Fund TOTAL 
Contribution 

$5.00 $150.00 
$5.00 $25.00 

$5.00 $25.00 

$450.00 
$40.00 

Preparation and Placement 
Fee x two 

Preparation and Placement 
Fee x two 

$10.00 
$50.00 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 187 of 215



-

"SCHEDULE F" 

Annual Dog Licence Fees 

1. (1) (a) male dog - not neutered

(b) female dog - not spayed

(2) (a) male dog - neutered

(b) female dog - spayed

Transfer or Replacement of Licence 

2. (1) transfer licence to new owner

(2) transfer licence to new dog

(3) replacement of lost tag

Kennel Licence 

3. Kennel licence

Care and Sustenance 

4. ( 1) Daily charge for cats and dogs

(2) Daily charge for farm animals

Disposal Fees 

5. (1) A dog or cat brought to the Pound for destruction

(2) Pickup, destruction and disposal of a dog or cat

(3) Requested pickup and disposal of carcass of a dog or cat

$30.00 

$30.00 

$10.00 

$10.00 

$2.00 

$2.00 

$2.00 

$200.00 

$10.00 

$20.00 

$125.00 

$200.00 

$125.00 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 188 of 215



Schedule "G" 

Arena Fees: 

Drop-in Admission 
Family Droo-in $10.00 
Adult Drop-in (19 yrs and over) $6.00 
Senior/Youth Drop-in (13 -18 yrs) $5.00 
Child Drop-In (12 and under) $3.00 
Infant (3 years and under) Free 

10x Pass 

Family 10x Pass $60.00 
Adult 10x Pass (19 yrs and over) $30.00 
Youth 1 Ox Pass (13 -18 years) $25.00 
Child 10x Pass (12 and under) $15.00 

Season Pass 

Family Season Pass $125.00 
Single Season Pass $75.00 

Arena Rental (Hourly Rate) 

Adult and Junior Hockey $100.00 
Hudson's Hope Minor Hockey/Fioure Skatinq $50.00 
School/Non-Profit Groups $50.00 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 189 of 215



Schedule "H" 

ADMINISTRATIVE TOTAL FEE 

NSF Cheque $30.00 
Property Tax Certificate $20.00 
BULLETIN ADVERTISING 

"For Sale" rate per month $10.00 
¼ page ad -rate per month $30.00 
¼ paqe ad -6 month prepaid rate $150.00 
¼ page ad -1 year prepaid rate $270.00 
½ paqe ad -rate per month $50.00 
½ page ad -6 month prepaid rate $250.00 
½ paqe ad -1 year prepaid rate $450.00 
Full page ad -rate per month rate $80.00 
Full paqe ad -6 month prepaid rate $400.00 
Full page ad -1 year prepaid rate $720.00 
PHOTOCOPYING 

Photocopies - all sizes (black and white) $.50 
Photocopies -all sizes (colour) $1.00 
Zoning Bylaw $25.00 
Official Community Plan Bylaw $30.00 
Map -3 x 3 District Map $30.00 
Map-18" x 36" Townsite Map $15.00 
Map -11" x 17" Lynx Creek Subdivision Map $10.00 
Map -11" x 17" Beryl Prairie Subdivision Map $10.00 
LaminatinQ per paqe $2.00 
Faxing $2.50 initial page each addition page $0.50 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 190 of 215



Schedule "I" 

Camoarounds 

Daily Fee per unit (for first unit in site) $20.00 
Additional unit fee (paid by each additional unit in $15.00 
a site already occupied) 
Reservation Fee $6.00 per night up to $18.00 maximum per 

booking 
Service Fee when District Office staff complete $5.00 
reservation over the phone for customer 
Season Pass (for Residents only) $200.00 
7 Night Punch Card $100.00 
Firewood: for each bundle sized 1.25 cubic feet $5.00 

... 

DRAFT

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 191 of 215



1

Tammy McKeown

Subject: FW: Letter of support

 
 
 
 
From: Double H Saddleclub <dhsaddleclub@gmail.com>  
Sent: February 22, 2019 10:53 AM 
To: Office Admin 1 <office1@hudsonshope.ca> 
Subject: Letter of support 
 
Good morning, 
 
The Double H Saddle Club is requesting a "letter of support" to build a roof over the outdoor bleachers at the rodeo grounds. 
This lean‐to will create a shelter for the community members out of the elements while observing the activity at the outdoor 
arena.  
We will be applying to the Co‐op Community Spaces Grant.  
This lean‐to will boast three walls to keep the wind and rain out. This has been an ongoing problem to the public which makes it 
uncomfortable to watch the rodeos etc. 
The members would really appreciate the districts support on this matter. 
 
Thank you!  
 
DHSC Board of Executives.  
 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 192 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
C1



February 27, 2019 
 
 
DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 
Box 330, 9904 Dudley Drive 
Hudson's Hope, BC V0C 1V0 
cao@hudsonshope.ca 

TransCanada Corporation 
450 – 1st Street S.W.  
Calgary, AB, Canada  T2P 5H1 
 
Tel: 1.855.253.0099 
Email: 
princerupertgas@transcanada.com 
 
 

 
 
RE: NOTIFICATION LETTER 
 Prince Rupert Gas Transmission Project (“the Project”) 

Permit Extension Application  
Location: Johnson Creek Site (CS 2-F) Unit 14, Block I, 93-O-16 
File Number: 130316 
Disposition: MUNICIPALITY - HUDSON'S HOPE (MAP ID 31) 

This letter is to advise you that in compliance with Section 32 (3) of the Oil and Gas Activities Act 
(OGAA) Prince Rupert Gas Transmission Project (PRGT) intends to submit a permit extension 
application to the BC Oil and Gas Commission (the Commission). This permit was previously 
applied for in 2014, approved in 2015, and renewed in 2017 and 2018. There are no changes to the 
facility and its relationship to your land interest.  This is only an application to extend the permit 
expiry date. Your interest in relation to the Project is shown on the enclosed map with the ID 
number noted above. 
 
PRGT has approval to construct and operate a sweet natural gas pipeline and associated facilities, 
approximately 900 km in length, starting from the area near the District of Hudson’s Hope, BC. to 
Lelu Island, near the District of Port Edward, BC. The current permit approval will expire on June 
17, 2019 and will be renewed for a total of one year.  
 
Should you have any questions regarding this application, please do not hesitate to contact one of 
the following representatives. 
 

Company Contact 
 
Any questions or objections regarding this project can be directed to the following personnel: 
 
Lauralee Schoenenberger – Project Coordinator (Land)  Roy Northern Land & Environmental  
Email: lauralee@roynorthernbc.com  Phone: 250-261-2318 
 

Dave Kmet – Team Lead – BC LNG Land  Prince Rupert Gas Transmission Limited  
        Partnership 
Email: Dave_Kmet@transcanada.com   Phone: 403-920-7061 
 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 193 of 215

mailto:lauralee@roynorthernbc.com
mailto:Dave_Kmet@transcanada.com
Office2
Typewritten Text
C2



 
Yours truly, 

 
 
Dave Kmet 
 
 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 194 of 215



3.30km

PROPOSED 9.11 ha
JOHNSON CREEK

COMPRESSOR SITE (CS 2-F)

37

33

DL 1054

DL 1061

DL 1064
DL 1063

DL 1062

DL 1069 DL 1070 DL 1071

DL 1282

1 2

3

4 5

7

8

9

14 16

17

18

19

20 21

23

25

30

31

36

24

26

27

28

29

6

10

11

12

13

15

22

32

33

34

35

7736 01 0

3 . 3 0 k m C / N R A D I U S

JCF07100.100

Johnson Cree
k FSR

H u d s o n ' sH u d s o n ' s
H o p eH o p e

556,000

556,000

558,000

558,000

560,000

560,000

562,000

562,000

6,1
94

,00
0

6,1
94

,00
0

6,1
96

,00
0

6,1
96

,00
0

6,1
98

,00
0

6,1
98

,00
0

6,2
00

,00
0

6,2
00

,00
0

6,2
02

,00
0

6,2
02

,00
0

SCALE 1:30,000
(NAD 1983 UTM ZONE 10N)

0 750 1,500 2,250 3,000375

m

$6
REVISION

IMAGE:2010

q

FOR: PROPOSED 9.11 ha JOHNSON CREEK
COMPRESSOR SITE (CS 2-F) WITHIN

UNIT 14, BLOCK I, 93-O-16

CROWN TENURES
Waterpower

Windpower

Env, Conserv. & Rec.

Agriculture

Industrial

Communication

Utility

Quarrying

Transportation

Watershed

Electric Power Line

PRINCE RUPERT GAS TRANSMISSION LTD.

MISCELLANEOUS

Mineral Reserve

Recreation 
Protected

Site "C" HCA
Permit

Mineral Tenure

Coal Tenure

Guide/Outfitter

Trapper

Residence 8
Trapper Cabin ²³

Grazing Tenure

Statement of Intent
Boundary

B.C.G.S.:  93O.100

WSP FILE NO.: 130402CM17R6_SK17R4.mxd

TRANSPORTATION
Highway

Highgrade Gravel 

Lowgrade Gravel 

Railway 

Forestry Road

Cutline/Trail

Winter Road

Paved Road

Rec Trail

MUNICIPAL

First Nations 
Reserve

Large Municipality

Parcel

Municipality

DISCLAIMER: The data contained herein was compiled from third party
sources and WSP Surveys (BC) Limited Partnership and its employees take

no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this information.

REF. NO.:  130402SK17R4

ENVIRONMENTAL

Provincial Park

Recreation Area

Vehicle Closure 
Area

Protected Area/
Ecological Reserve

Muskwa-Kechika
Management Area

FORESTRY
Cutblock

Community Forests

Woodlots

Forest Cover
Reserve

Tree Farm License 1:30,000 CONSULTATION/NOTIFICATION MAP

OIL AND GAS

Pipeline

Ground Disturbance/
Leases

PAGE: 1 of 3

CHECKED:  NE

DRAWN BY:  LLW

JOB NO.: 010042349

DATE: Jan. 31, 2019

PROJECT FEATURES
Proposed Features

Previously Proposed
   Features

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 195 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 196 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
C3



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 197 of 215



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 198 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
C4



Find out more

Read this email online

Site C Construction Schedule: March 4 – March 17

Dam site area – north (left) bank and south (right) bank

Contractors will continue to move equipment and material to site.
This includes deliveries by rail.

Contractors are continuing construction and operations in their work
areas. This includes the main civil works, generating station and
spillways civil works, turbines and generators, and substation.

Water management activities may take place.

Excavation, including in-river excavation, will progress on both banks
of the Peace River.

Construction activities, such as drilling, blasting, crushing, earth
moving, tunnelling, concrete placement, and road maintenance, will
continue. Tower and mobile cranes will be used on site.

Site preparation will continue at the 85th Avenue Industrial Lands.
Work has begun on building the conveyor that will deliver fill material
to the dam site.

Highway 29

At Halfway River, clearing and vegetation removal is continuing.
Environmental and wildlife monitoring is taking place to support
clearing.

At Farrell Creek and near Dry Creek west of Farrell Creek Road,
geotechnical investigations may begin. This could include drilling,
digging test pits, surveying, minor vegetation removal, and some
traffic control.

At Portage Mountain Quarry, site investigations and surveys have
started in preparation for site clearing.

Wood waste may be chipped, mulched, spread as coarse woody
debris, hauled off-site, or burned. Burning may take place, as
permitted by ground conditions, the fire danger rating, and venting
conditions

Electrical distribution poles will be temporarily moved in the Cache
Creek West area.

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 199 of 215

http://email.bchydro.com/c/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd48580fbcadcb36a0af75b55e34b6de2523f1f694ea285081
http://email.bchydro.com/c/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd48580fbcadcb36a0b4730c4d1632118023f1f694ea285081
http://email.bchydro.com/v/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd8cc6298c61b8b5a9
Office2
Typewritten Text
C5



Reservoir area

Forestry and access road data collection and site investigations will
continue near and along the reservoir area.

Clearing activities are taking place in the eastern and lower reservoir
areas (dam site to Cache Creek), Moberly River area and Cache
Creek area. This includes access road upgrades, logging, log hauling
and debris disposal.

Some clearing activities may begin in the middle reservoir area
around Cache Creek and Halfway River on BC Hydro-owned
properties. This includes road upgrades, log hauling and debris
disposal.

Wood waste may be chipped, mulched, spread as coarse woody
debris, hauled off-site, or burned. Burning may take place, as
permitted by ground conditions, the fire danger rating, and venting
conditions.

Transmission works

Clearing will continue in the transmission corridor. Wood waste may
be chipped, mulched, spread as coarse woody debris, hauled off-site,
or burned.

Maintenance and upgrade work will continue on roads that provide
access to parts of the transmission corridor.

Construction of temporary roads within the transmission line right-of-
way will continue.

Material and equipment are being delivered to the marshalling yard at
Moberly Lake and the temporary field office on Jackfish Lake Road.

The transmission line contractor will continue assembling towers on
the ground, and installing and testing helical pile foundations at
various sites along the right-of-way.

The transmission line contractor will continue installing transmission
towers on the foundations.

Site investigations, including stripping and data recovery of
archaeological sites, geotechnical work, and structure staking, may
take place.

Upgrades will continue at Peace Canyon Generating Station.

Other areas

Work is occurring downstream of the dam site for the Peace River
side channel enhancements.

Aggregate and riprap production will continue in West Pine Quarry.
Material will be transported by rail and road to the dam site.

What to expect

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 200 of 215



More info Contact Site C Unsubscribe

Work will take place during the day, night, and on the weekend, until the
project is completed. During this time, residents can expect the following:

Heavy machinery will be in the transmission line corridor assembling
electrical towers. For your safety, please stay clear of the work areas.

There will be project-related traffic on public and resource roads,
including petroleum development roads.

Trucks with heavy loads will be accessing the dam site and other
project areas. This includes Old Hope Road and along Highway 29 at
Cache Creek and Halfway River. Please use caution when meeting a
pilot car and observe all warning signs.

Helicopters and commercial drones may be used to support
investigative and construction works.

Some noise and vibration may occur near the dam site and work
areas, including the quarries. Pile driving may take place near the
85th Avenue Industrial Lands.

There may be smoke in various areas as a result of planned burning.
Burning will only take place when permitted by the fire danger rating
and when venting windows are available.

For your safety, please stay clear of active in-river work areas along
the Peace and Moberly rivers. These areas are clearly identified with
signage and markings.

Note: In BC Hydro's technical documents, the north bank may be referred to
as the left bank and the south bank may be referred to as the right bank.

You've received this email at clerk@hudsonshope.ca because you subscribed to receive
email updates on construction for the Site C project.

No longer interested? Unsubscribe.

© BC Hydro, 333 Dunsmuir Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6B 5R3 | Privacy Statement

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 201 of 215

http://email.bchydro.com/c/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd48580fbcadcb36a0b4730c4d1632118023f1f694ea285081
http://email.bchydro.com/c/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd48580fbcadcb36a07a2fdb490440f8fe23f1f694ea285081
http://email.bchydro.com/c/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd48580fbcadcb36a0691e93876cd52ce423f1f694ea285081
mailto:clerk@hudsonshope.ca
http://email.bchydro.com/c/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd48580fbcadcb36a0691e93876cd52ce423f1f694ea285081
http://email.bchydro.com/c/443/ba04e77e916c9c505ed438c77eb0d6cd48580fbcadcb36a02b4386fbc49068c223f1f694ea285081


1

Tammy McKeown

Subject: FW: FOR ACTION: Fort St. John Land and Resource Management Update Project

From: Oliemans, Fred FLNR:EX <Fred.Oliemans@gov.bc.ca>  
Sent: March 1, 2019 2:39 PM 
To: Chris Cvik <cao@hudsonshope.ca>; Paterson, Genevieve FLNR:EX <Genevieve.Paterson@gov.bc.ca> 
Cc: Trina Wamboldt ‐ Urban Systems Ltd. (twamboldt@urbansystems.ca) <twamboldt@urbansystems.ca> 
Subject: RE: FOR ACTION: Fort St. John Land and Resource Management Update Project 
 

Absolutely.  It is important to us to hear from you, so if you could make your submission to Urban systems and copy to both 

myself and Genevieve, we will be sure it is incorporated somehow.  Urban Systems does need time to complete their product 

well before the end of March, which is why we have the deadline in the first place.  So, the sooner the better. 

Hope that helps 

Cheers 

Fred 

 

Fred Oliemans  
Manager, Land Use Planning 
Northeast 
Ministry of Forests, Lands Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development 
Smithers, BC  
Phone: 250-847-7289   Cell: 250-877-3224 
fred.oliemans@gov.bc.ca  

 

 

 

From: Chris Cvik <cao@hudsonshope.ca>  
Sent: March 1, 2019 12:18 PM 
To: Oliemans, Fred FLNR:EX <Fred.Oliemans@gov.bc.ca>; Paterson, Genevieve FLNR:EX <Genevieve.Paterson@gov.bc.ca> 
Subject: RE: FOR ACTION: Fort St. John Land and Resource Management Update Project 
 

Good afternoon, are we able to request an extension to March 13th please.  This will allow us to discuss the item with the entire 

Council at our March 11th meeting. 

Please let us know. 

Chris 

Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 
District of Hudson's Hope 
Cell:   250-783-0942 
 
 
 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 202 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
C6



2

From: Paterson, Genevieve FLNR:EX <Genevieve.Paterson@gov.bc.ca> On Behalf Of Oliemans, Fred FLNR:EX 
Sent: February 7, 2019 3:49 PM 
Subject: FOR ACTION: Fort St. John Land and Resource Management Update Project 
 

Fort St. John LRMP Update: Invitation to Provide Input 

British Columbia’s Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development is working with local First 

Nations and interested parties from local governments, industry, stakeholders and the public to update the Fort St. John Land 

and Resource Management Plan (the LRMP Update Project). The attached information sheet provides an overview of the 

project. 

 

The LRMP Update Project will be undertaken in two sequential phases. The first phase (November 2018 to March 2019) involves 

a public engagement process designed to understand local interests and concerns related to land use in the Fort St. John LRMP 

area and topics and opportunities to be addressed in an updated LRMP. The second phase (May 2019 – May 2021) will be a 

technical planning process based on the feedback gathered during phase one.  

 

Consulting firm Urban Systems has been retained to support ministry staff in gathering community feedback. A set of scoping 

questions has been developed and the answers to these questions will be gathered using three methods of engagement:  

 an online feedback form (February 7 – March 6, 2019) 

 an open house on February 20, 2019 – register for open house  

 telephone interviews to answer the scoping questions (instead of online) ‐ schedule an interview 

The results of the public engagement will be compiled by Urban Systems into a “What We Heard” report that will be available 

publicly in spring 2019. 

 

The LRMP Update Project is a land use planning priority, consistent with the ministry’s stewardship role in managing B.C.’s public 
land, and the B.C. government’s continuing commitment to working in partnership with First Nations and communities. 

Information about the LRMP Update Project can be found on the website at: https://engage.gov.bc.ca/fortstjohn-land-resource-
management-plan-review/   
 

We look forward to your participation. If you have questions about the LRMP Update, please refer them to one of us at the co‐

ordinates below. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Fred Oliemans 
Project Lead, LRMP Update Project 
250‐877‐3224 
Fred.Oliemans@gov.bc.ca 
 
Suite 370 – 10003 110th Avenue  
Fort St. John  BC  V1J 6M7 
 

Alternate Contact:  
Genevieve Paterson 
Land and Resource Specialist, LRMP Update Project 
250‐877‐1211 
Genevieve.Paterson@gov.bc.ca 

 
 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 203 of 215



0%

1. Are you answering this survey on behalf of a specific group or
organiza�on?

 Choose one of the following answers

No

Yes

2. Please iden�fy in which region you or your organiza�on are
located. See map
(/upload/surveys/941812/files/BCDevelopmentRegions.PNG) for
reference.

 Check all that apply

Cariboo Region

Kootenay Region

Mainland/Southwest Region

Nechako Region

North Coast Region

Northeast Region

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 204 of 215

https://feedback.engage.gov.bc.ca/upload/surveys/941812/files/BCDevelopmentRegions.PNG


Thompson-Okanagan Region

Vancouver Island/Coast Region

3. What are your hopes for the future of land and resource
management within the Fort St. John Land and Resource
Mangement Area (Fort St. John Timber Supply Area)?

Please do not include any personally iden�fiable informa�on about yourself or others in your
responses.



4. From your perspec�ve, what poten�al areas of opportunity
could be addressed in an updated land and resource
management plan?

Please do not include any personally iden�fiable informa�on about yourself or others in your
responses.



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 205 of 215



5. From your perspec�ve, what key concerns or problems
should be addressed in an updated land and resource
management plan?

Please do not include any personally iden�fiable informa�on about yourself or others in your
responses.



6. How would you/your organiza�on like to be involved and/or
kept informed during the Update process?

 Choose one of the following answers

 If you choose 'Other please specify:' please also specify your choice in the accompanying text
field.

Email

Newsle�er

Mail

Updates to the engagement website

Other please specify:

Please do not include any personally iden�fiable informa�on about yourself or others in your
responses.



March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 206 of 215



7. Is there any technical or other informa�on that you or your
organiza�on may have that could contribute to the informa�on
base for future planning? If yes, please explain.

Please do not include any personally iden�fiable informa�on about yourself or others in your
responses.



8. Do you have other comments or sugges�ons about the LRMP
Update Project?

Please do not include any personally iden�fiable informa�on about yourself or others in your
responses.



Next

Home Disclaimer (http://gov.bc.ca/disclaimer/) Privacy (http://gov.bc.ca/privacy/)

Accessibility (http://gov.bc.ca/webaccessibility/) Copyright (http://gov.bc.ca/copyright)

Contact Us (https://engage.gov.bc.ca/govtogetherbc/contact-us/)

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 207 of 215

http://gov.bc.ca/disclaimer/
http://gov.bc.ca/privacy/
http://gov.bc.ca/webaccessibility/
http://gov.bc.ca/copyright
https://engage.gov.bc.ca/govtogetherbc/contact-us/


50%

9. Please provide contact informa�on for purposes of future communica�ons
about the LRMP Update Project. (op�onal)

First Name

Last Name

Email

Phone

Providing contact informa�on is op�onal. 

Submit

Home Disclaimer (http://gov.bc.ca/disclaimer/) Privacy (http://gov.bc.ca/privacy/)

Accessibility (http://gov.bc.ca/webaccessibility/) Copyright (http://gov.bc.ca/copyright)

Contact Us (https://engage.gov.bc.ca/govtogetherbc/contact-us/)

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 208 of 215

http://gov.bc.ca/disclaimer/
http://gov.bc.ca/privacy/
http://gov.bc.ca/webaccessibility/
http://gov.bc.ca/copyright
https://engage.gov.bc.ca/govtogetherbc/contact-us/


Fort St. John LRMP Update Project – Flipchart Notes Feedback 

1. Are you answering this survey on behalf of a specific group or organization? 
Yes, Area C, PRRD Department 

If yes, please identify the group, organization or sector you most closely identify with:  
Government/ General Public 

2. Which region: Northeast Region 

3. What are your hopes for the future of land and resource management within the Fort St. John Land 
and Resource Management Area (Fort St. John Timber Supply Area)? 

• Where are we today vs. 1997 and how it’s affecting all interested parties 
• More structured growth as we try to expand base economy 
• Effects of Industry on agriculture  
• Consultation – more inclusive  
• Look at both positive and negative impacts 
• Public overlapping map of all land uses with layers that can be added/removed 

4. From your perspective, what potential areas of opportunity could be addressed in an updated land 
and resource management plan? 

• What happens when industry moves out? – Diversity in future 
• Different times today 
• Recycling /clean energy 
• Climate change/water/air 
• Indigenous involvement 

o Want to hear directly from First Nations not from Government – body language, tone, 
etc. 

o Relying on government report to understand Indigenous perspectives  

5. From your perspective, what key concerns or problems should be addressed in an updated land and 
resource management plan? 

• Inclusive consultation  
• Number 1: Co-existence between all people and industries! 
• We have to be neighbours and look after our land together 
• Need to sit across from each other and work it out 
• Is government listening? Will recommendations be acted on? 
• Integration of Ministries and different levels of government – need to work together 
• Get the information to the public – more communication especially with rural citizens  

6. How would you/your organization like to be involved and/or kept informed during the Update 
process 

• Staff to be involved 
• Open houses – more inclusive 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 209 of 215



• Don’t want a postcard 
• Interactive engagement with Ministry Representatives / Decision Makers – hearing firsthand is 

much more effective than through a postcard 
• Need timely responses from all governments (timing and coordination is important) 
• Face-to-face relational meetings 
• Multi-stakeholder forums to be able to work out tensions vs. being in “camps” / positions 
• District coming together to discuss as a collective and as individual municipalities  
• Can’t be in-camera meetings 
• We are accountable to our citizens at local government – can’t run away  
• Must be able to repeat back and explain without breaking the relationship with other 

governments 
• Respect confidentiality but also be respectful  

7.  Is there any technical or other information that you or your organization may have that could 
contribute to the information base for future planning? If yes, please explain. 

• Need to review with staff 
• What brought us here 
• Get wisdom from those who previously worked on this 
• Res D has a lot of GIS data that others don’t have – can add value 
• Evergreen technical system to distribute info to citizens through multiple channels (phone, 

email, social media) – can’t be targeted to specific audiences  
• Debra Jones-Middleton – Emergency Management 

8. Do you have other comments or suggestions about the LRMP Update Project? 

• Couldn’t find LRMP through Google (not on Engage BC website)  

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 210 of 215



Chetwynd Communications Society 
Box 973 
Chetwynd, BC 
V0C1J0 
 
March 6, 2019 
 
Mayor and Council 
District of Hudson’s Hope 
Box 330, 9904 Dudley Drive 
Hudson’s Hope, BC V0C 1V0 
 
Dear Mayor and Councillors: 
 
With great pride, we are pleased to report that our applications to the CRTC to add rebroadcasting radio 
transmitters in Tumbler Ridge and to the District of Hudson’s Hope are now complete.  Our application 
is now advertised on the CRTC website for intervention and support at the community, regional and 
national levels.  Our signal will be 50 watts and we have permission to lease from TELUS on Signal Hill.  
Your signal will be designated as 99.5 CHCH.  You may listen to us on peacefm.ca streaming audio.  You 
will be pleased! 
 
We are requesting a formal letter of support to be sent by April 1st, 2019 and filed on the following CRTC website:  
February 28, 2019https://services.crtc.gc.ca/pub/instances-proceedings/Default-
Defaut.aspx?S=O&PA=B&PT=PT1&PST=A&Lang=eng&_ga=2.246892420.1884757462.1551884163-
1553045287.1546617372. We believe the hearing to hear our brief will be in or about May, 2019. 
 
We have always included Hudson’s’ Hope in our emergency bulletins and will now effectively be heard 
in the valley.   Once we have permission to broadcast, we will start the technical side of acquiring the 
equipment and setting up the transmitter as per our budget. We want your community to be part of our 
community radio station and will seek volunteers & schools to contribute community event dates and 
news stories. Our intention is hire a part-time employee to work with us as our Peace FM (CHCH) 
representative.  
 
Please note that we play 12% local music and many of your artists are routinely played on Peace FM.    
 
Your support is needed and would encourage a delegation to attend our offices in Chetwynd to visit and 
to tour our facilities so that you can look us over.  By adding Hudson’s Hope to our listening area will 
bind our Peace FM communities together. 
 
We will entertain you! 
 
Sincerely 
 

 
 
Leo Sabulsky 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 211 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
C7



Director/Volunteer Manager Peace FM 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 212 of 215



1

Office Admin 2

Subject: FW: Centennial Tree Planting Campaign IMPORTANT INFORMATION!

 
 
 

From: LGMA Office <Office@lgma.ca>  
Sent: March 7, 2019 2:55 PM 
Subject: Centennial Tree Planting Campaign IMPORTANT INFORMATION! 
 

CENTENNIAL TREE PLANTING CAMPAIGN:  
The Local Government Management Association of BC (LGMA) would like to thank you for agreeing to plant a tree in 
recognition of the impact that local government professionals make in communities across the province. This document 
provides an update with information and key dates relating to the Centennial Tree Planting campaign. 
 
If you have any questions about the Tree Planting campaign, please contact office@lgma.ca.  

 
TREE FUNDING: 
All participating local governments will receive a $50 cheque from the LGMA to offset the cost of your tree.  
 
If you do not want the $50 cheque and would prefer the LGMA to order the tree directly for you, please confirm this by 
no later than March 20 at 4:30pm.  
 
If we do not hear from you by March 20, we will assume you would like the $50 cheque and will mail a cheque to your 
local government. Cheques will be mailed between the last week of March and the first week of April. 
 
If you would like the LGMA to order your tree or questions about the cheque, please email office@lgma.ca. 

 
PLAQUES: 
Plaques will be mailed to participating local governments by the LGMA on March 25, 2019. Plaques should arrive to your 
local government within 3‐5 business days.  

 
TREE PLANTING CEREMONIES: 
Please send the LGMA photos from your tree planting.  
 
If you are planning a ceremony for your tree planting, we would appreciate it if you would send the LGMA photos of the 
event. These photos will be displayed at the Heritage Showcase at our 2019 Annual Conference (June 11‐13 in 
Vancouver) and will be used when we report the success of the project to our funding partner BC Hydro. 
 
 
LGMA 
Suite 710A– 880 Douglas Street 
Victoria, BC  V8W 2B7 
T. 250.383.7032 
E. office@lgma.ca 
Twitter: @LGMABC 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 213 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
C8



2

 
 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 214 of 215



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

BACKGROUND: 

Council has historically not published closed meeting on the open agenda and the basis for the 
closed meeting.  In order to continue to be transparent, when there is a closed meeting, a notice 
will be included on the open agenda with sufficient information to describe the reason for the 
closed meeting.  

This will also provide Council with the opportunity to recess to a Closed Meeting to discuss 
whether or not the items properly belong in a Closed Session (Community Charter Section 
90(1)(n). 

DISCUSSION: 

Closed Meetings will continue to be held at the end of a regular Council meeting. 

Including a cover-report about a Closed Meeting is simply a place holder to make the public 
aware a closed meeting is taking place and a high-level description on the topics. 

BUDGET: N/A 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 

That Council recess to a Closed Meeting for the purpose of discussing the following item(s):  
Agenda Item –  Property Disposition (CC Section 90 (1) (e)) 

 Human Rights Complaint (CC Section 90(1) (g)) 
Request from BC Hydro (CC Section 90(1) (j)).  

(e) the acquisition, disposition, or expropriation of land or improvements, if the council
considers that disclosure could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the
municipality

(g)litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality

(j) information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a document
would be prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act;

Section 21 (1) The head of a public body must refuse to disclose to an applicant 
information 

(b) that is supplied, implicitly or explicitly, in confidence, and
(c) the disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to harm significantly the
competitive position or interfere significantly with the negotiating position of the third
party

Report Approved by: _________________________ 
Chris Cvik, Interim CAO 

RFD#:    CC-2019-21 Date:  March, 2019 
Meeting#:  CM031119 Originator: Chris Cvik 
RFD TITLE:     Notice of Closed Session – March 11, 2019 

March 11 2019 Regular Council Meeting

Page 215 of 215

Office2
Typewritten Text
ICS




